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| have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
the annual report of China Pipe Group Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the
Group”) for the year ended 31st December 2010.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31st December 2010, the Group
recorded revenue from continuing operations of
approximately HK$516.4 milion (2009: HK$452.0
million), representing an increase of 14% as compared
with the year ended 31st December 2009. The loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$122.8 million for the year ended
31st December 2010, as compared with the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$39.7 million for the year ended
31st December 2009. The basic loss per share from
continuing operations was approximately HK0.81 cents
(2009: HKO0.18 cents).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company does not
recommend a final dividend for the year ended 31st
December 2010 (2009: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Although the general economy has shown some signs
of recovery, the year of 2010 was a challenging year
for the Group. We turned around the trading of pipes
and fittings operation, however, the Group still made
a substantial loss as a result of the unsatisfactory
performance of the seamless steel pipes business.

Chairman’s Statement :
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* Chairman’s Statement
- EERE

During the year of 2010, the Hong Kong and Macau
markets were still very competitive. The commodity
prices have been very volatile, hence, created a lot of
difficulties and challenges to our trading operations.
To address this, we have placed more focus on
cost control. More effort has also been dedicated to
enhance procurement and efficiency and effectiveness
of the purchasing function.
management was one of the key management
initiatives. The average age of inventories was lowered

Improving inventory

as compared to prior year. As a result, we were
successful in turning our trading of pipes and fittings
operations from a loss to a profit situation.

However, the performance of the segment of
manufacturing and sale of seamless steel pipes in
Mainland China was well below our expectation. The
financial results for the year ended 31st December
2010 for the segment of manufacturing and sale of
seamless steel pipes was materially affected by the
imposition of anti-dumping duties on imports of steel
pipes by the United States and the significant surge
in commodities prices (i.e. cost of raw materials of
the seamless steel pipes segment). In addition, the
implementation of the strategy of selling oil pipes to
energy companies was not as smooth as expected.
Therefore, the segment could not have any profit
contribution from the sale of oil pipes to those energy
companies to reduce the above impact.

PROSPECTS

Last year was a challenging year for the seamless steel
pipes business in Mainland China. Looking forward,
the market competition will continue to be very intense.
This is exacerbated by the recent increase of anti-
dumping duty and anti-subsidy duty on steel products
exporting to the United States. Given the monetary
easing policies of the United States, it is expected that
commodity prices will continue its uprising trend in the
foreseeable future.
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Against the difficult market conditions as explained
above and having regard to the unsatisfactory
performance in the segment of manufacturing and
sale of seamless steel pipes in Mainland China, and
the considerable strain which this segment places on
the Group’s internal resources, the Group intends to
consider the disposal of such segment in future should
the opportunity arise.

The Group will continue to develop our pipe trading
business in Hong Kong and Macau. We will focus
our efforts on upgrading our products and services,
developing new product lines, and strengthening
our relationships with our customers. Through these
initiatives, we aim at growing our top line sales and
improving our bottom line profits of the Group.

In addition to the pipe trading business, the
management will continue to seek investment
opportunities that can potentially bring better returns to
our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to a team of dedicated and professional
employees for their outstanding performance and to
our shareholders for their persistent support.

Lai Guanglin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th March 2011
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December 2010, the Group
recorded revenue from continuing operations of
approximately HK$516.4 milion (2009: HK$452.0
million), representing an increase of 14% as compared
with the year ended 31st December 2009. The loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$122.8 million for the year ended
31st December 2010, as compared with the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$39.7 milion for the year ended
31st December 2009. The basic loss per share from
continuing operations was approximately HK0.81 cents
(2009: HKO0.18 cents).

The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to
contribution from sale of seamless steel pipes by ([E=
TRLYEEIMEER AR (“Yantai Kiyofo Seamless
Steel Pipe Co., Ltd.”) (“Kiyofo”) which was acquired in
November 2009.

Before taking into account the corporate and other
expenses, the loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company was mainly due to impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment of Kiyofo amounted
to approximately HK$98.9 million, impairment loss
on goodwill of Kiyofo amounted to approximately
HK$23.1 million, impairment loss on land use rights
of Kiyofo amounted to approximately HK$2.5 million
and loss from discontinued operation amounted to
approximately HK$14.8 million (2009: HK$16.3 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis -

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Continuing Operations

Trading of pipes and fittings

The trading of pipes and fittings reported revenue
for the year (excluding inter-segment revenue) of
approximately HK$385.1 million (2009: HK$390.9
million) and profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year of approximately HK$15.6 million
(2009: loss of approximately HK$12.3 million).

During the year of 2010, the profit attributable to equity
holders from the segment of trading of pipes and
fittings was improved. The profit was mainly attributable
to the increase in gross profit margin resulting from the
better cost control. In addition, there were write-back
of provision for inventories of approximately HK$4.7
million (2009: provision for impairment of inventories of
approximately HK$13.3 million) and decrease in bad
debt expenses for the year 2010 compared with the
year 2009.

Manufacturing and sales of seamless steel pipes

As Kiyofo was acquired in November 2009, its results
was consolidated into the Group accounts since then.
The manufacturing and sales of seamless steel pipes
reported revenue of approximately HK$131.3 million
for the year 2010 and loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company of approximately HK$8.4 million
excluding one-off items. The one-off items amounted to
approximately HK$81.1 million, which mainly included
impairment losses on goodwill, property, plant and

equipment and land use rights.
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The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
was mainly due to impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment of Kiyofo amounted to approximately
HK$98.9 million, impairment loss on land use rights
of Kiyofo amounted to approximately HK$2.5 million,
impairment loss on goodwill relating to seamless steel
pipe segment of HK$23.1 million and low gross profit
margin as a result of higher cost of raw materials.

The financial results for the year ended 31st December
2010 for the segment of manufacturing and sale
of seamless steel pipes was materially affected by
the imposition of anti-dumping duties on imports of
steel pipes to the United States and the European
Union with duty up to approximately 98% and
39% respectively. In addition, the US Ministry of
Commerce decided to impose anti-subsidy duty up
to approximately 13% in early 2010. These measures
have led to oversupply and intense competition in the
Mainland China market as the steel pipe exporters
turned to the domestic market. On the other hand, the
cost of raw materials (mainly steel billets) increased
significantly which has exacerbated the situation. The
average cost of steel billets for 2010 has increased by
approximately 21% over prior year. The gross profit
margin was therefore significantly reduced and resulted
in an operating loss.

Since Kiyofo has made a loss for the year ended 31st
December 2010, the profit guarantee of RMB30 million
(pursuant to the supplemental sale and purchase
agreements dated 7th September 2009) has not been
met. For the year ended 31st December 2010, the net
loss of Kiyofo before and after one-off items (mainly
included impairment losses), were approximately
RMB12.8 million and RMB62.7 million respectively.
In view of the loss making position of Kiyofo, the
Company and the vendors under the supplemental
sale and purchase agreements agreed that the one-
off items of Kiyofo should be excluded as the basis
of the calculation of the shortfall as operating loss
was intended as the basis for calculating the shortfall.
As such, the shortfall was equivalent to 60% of the
approximately RMB42.8 million, being the sum of
approximately RMB25.7 million.

China Pipe Group Limited #EIE%&£®EHERATE
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Management Discussion and Analysis -

Discontinuing Operation
Investment properties

As the Group has disposed all its properties situated in
Hong Kong and Shanghai during 2010, the investment
properties operation was presented as discontinued
operation. For 2010, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$1.5 milion (2009: HK$1.8 million)
and loss attributable to equity holders of approximately
HK$27.7 million (2009: HK$5.1 million), which included
the loss on properties revaluation of approximately
HK$23.1 million (2009: gain of HK$4.1 million).

PROSPECTS

Last year was a challenging year for the seamless steel
pipes business in Mainland China. Looking forward,
the market competition will continue to be very intense.
This is exacerbated by the recent increase of anti-
dumping duty and anti-subsidy duty on steel products
exporting to the United States. Given the monetary
easing policies of the United States, it is expected that
commodity prices will continue its uprising trend in the
foreseeable future.

Against the difficult market conditions as explained
above and having regard to the unsatisfactory
performance in the segment of manufacturing and
sale of seamless steel pipes in Mainland China, and
the considerable strain which this segment places on
the Group’s internal resources, the Group intends to
consider the disposal of such segment in future should

the opportunity arise.

The Group will continue to develop our pipe trading
business in Hong Kong and Macau. We will focus
our efforts on upgrading our products and services,
developing new product lines, and strengthening
our relationships with our customers. Through these
initiatives, we aim at growing our top line sales and
improving our bottom line profits of the Group.
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In addition to the pipe trading business, the
management will continue to seek investment
opportunities that can potentially bring better returns to
our shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
ANALYSIS

As at 31st December 2010, the cash and bank
balances of the Group were approximately HK$155.0
million (31st December 2009: HK$94.4 million)
including pledged bank deposit amounted to HK$92.8
million (31st December 2009: HK$38.6 million).
Basically the Group’s working capital requirement has
been financed by its internal resources. The Group
believes that funds generated from operations and the
available banking facilities will enable the Group to meet
its future working capital requirements.

As at 31st December 2010, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities of term loans and trade finance of
approximately HK$233.3 million (31st December 2009:
HK$392.5 million), approximately HK$221.0 million
(31st December 2009: HK$308.1 million) was utilised.
The Group’s total borrowings stood at approximately
HK$174.0 milion (31st December 2009: HK$278.1
million), the entire amount of borrowings (31st
December 2009: HK$238.2 million) will mature within
one year.

Of the total HK$174.0 million borrowings outstanding at
31st December 2010 (31st December 2009: HK$278.1
million), HK$174.0 million (31st December 2009:
HK$243.8 million) was subject to floating rates and no
borrowing was subject to fixed rate (31st December
2009: HK$34.3 million).

As at 31st December 2010, the Group had no

unsecured shareholder loans (31st December 2009:
HK$54.4 million).

China Pipe Group Limited #EIE%&£®EHERATE
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Management Discussion and Analysis -

The gearing ratio as measured by total debt to total
equity maintained at approximately 63% as at 31st
December 2010 and approximately 81% as at 31st
December 2009.

As at 31st December 2010, 39% (31st December
2009: 40%) of the Group’s total borrowings was
denominated in HK dollars, 61% (31st December 2009:
60%) was denominated in Renminbi.

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly
in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi, United States dollar,
Euro and Australian dollar. In order to manage foreign
exchange risk, the Group has been closely monitoring
its foreign currency exposure and the Group has
entered into a foreign exchange forward contract for
the year under review.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st December 2010, certain assets of the Group
held by subsidiaries with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$204.1 million (31st December 2009:
HK$479.3 million) were pledged to banks for banking
facilities obtained.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantee contract

As at 31st December 2010, a subsidiary of the Group
in Mainland China has provided a corporate guarantee
(with maximum exposure of approximately HK$21.9
million) in favor of a bank to support the banking
facilities of approximately HK$43.9 million obtained
by an independent third party which is required to
provide 50% pledged deposit upon drawdown (31st
December 2009: HK$29.2 million against which no
pledged deposit was required). This guarantee has
been provided as part of counter security arrangement
entered into by the subsidiary with the independent
third party, whereby the independent third party has
also provided corporate guarantee in favor of the
subsidiary for banking facilities up to approximately
HK$47.4 million.

-
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Management.Discussion and Analysis

EEE AR

STAFF AND EMPLOYMENT

As at 31st December 2010, the Group employed a
total of 501 (31st December 2009: 543) employees.
Total employee benefit expenses for the year ended
31st December 2010 was approximately HK$56.3
million (2009: HK$43.0 million).

Remuneration schemes are reviewed annually and
certain staff members are entitled to sales commission.
In addition to the basic salaries and contributions to
the mandatory provident fund, the Group also pays
discretionary bonus and provides staff with other
benefits including medical scheme for Hong Kong
employees. The Group contributes to an employee
pension scheme established by the PRC Government
which undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group in Mainland China.

China Pipe Group Limited #EIE%&£®EHERATE
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior. Management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, aged 46, was appointed as
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company in May 2009. Mr. Yu has over 20 years of
experience in investment management, investment
banking and general management of listed companies.
Mr. Yu began his career at Mackenzie Financial
Corporation in Toronto, Canada as an investment
analyst in 1989 and since then, he has served several
major financial corporations including J.P. Morgan,
Deutsche Bank and CITIC Capital. In addition to his
vast investment banking and management experience,
Mr. Yu has also managed listed companies such as
New World Cyberbase Limited and Asia Logistics
Holdings Limited in Hong Kong. During his past career,
Mr. Yu has focused on direct investment and M&A
activities in sectors including construction materials,
infrastructure, energy, technologies, media and financial
services.

Mr. Yu has a Bachelor of Art degree in English
Literature from the Beijing Foreign Studies University, a
Master of Art degree in Education from the University
of Toronto and a Master's degree in Business
Administration from the University of Western Ontario.

Mr. Sam Ming Choy, aged 46, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in February 2009. Mr. Choy was then re-designated as
Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer of the
Company in September 2009. He has approximately
15 years of experience in managing investment
enterprises. He was admitted to the Australian
Government and served as Senior Commercial
Representative in 1995, and has held the posts
of executive director of Australian New Resource
Investment Group since 2001, the executive director of
American Chinese Culture Foundation (k&4
&) and American Chinese Culture Relics Society (HF
EXWHE) since 2006 respectively. Mr. Choy holds
a Doctor of Business Administration degree jointly
issued by Tsinghua University and Southern California
University.
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Mr. Lai Fulin, aged 45, was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company in October 2009. Mr. Lai has
over 20 years of experience in the banking sector,
investments management and general management
of companies in China. Mr. Lai worked in the Bank of
China in Shenzhen during 1986 to 2001. During 1995
to 2001, he was the deputy general manager of a
subsidiary of Bank of China dealing with businesses in
the securities industry. During 2002 to 2008, Mr. Lai
was the general manager of Shenzhen Huao Guanli
Technologies Company Limited (FIITEERE HEHE
EEHBR AR Mr. Lai holds a certificate of graduation
in Chinese Language from Shenzhen Institute of
Education (RYJIZAEEBRT). Mr. Lai is the younger
brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, the controlling shareholder,
the Chairman and a Non-executive Director of the
Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Guanglin, aged 47, was appointed as Non-
executive Director and the Chairman of the Company
in February 2009. Mr. Lai has extensive experience
in business development and venture investment
management. Mr. Lai has served as the chairman of
the board of directors of Agria Corporation, a company
listed on the New York Stock Exchange, which
mainly engages in seed business development and
investments in agricultural sector. His wholly owned
investment vehicle, Brothers Capital Limited,
largest shareholder of Agria Corporation. Mr. Lai was

is the

also an independent non-executive director of KXD
Digital Entertainment Ltd., a company listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange, during 29th May 2003 to
7th May 2009. Mr. Lai was appointed as a director of
PGG Wrightson Limited, New Zealand in December
2009, a company listed on the New Zealand stock
exchange. Mr. Lai is also the deputy Chairman of

Commerce of Chamber in Shenzhen, China.

Mr. Lai holds a bachelor's degree in accounting from
Monash University, Australia. He is a certified public
accountant in Australia. Mr. Lai is the brother of Mr. Lai
Fulin, an Executive Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior. Management

Mr. U Kean Seng, aged 44, was appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company in February 2009.
Mr. U has more than 15 years of experience in legal
practice. Mr. U specialises in the area of corporate
law and corporate finance. Mr. U was admitted to
the Supreme Court of Victoria, Australia in 1991, the
Singapore Bar in 1993 and the Roll of Solicitors for
England and Wales in 2009. Mr. U holds a bachelor’s
degree in economics and a bachelor's degree in
laws (Honours) from Monash University, Australia.
Mr. U currently holds the professional appointment
as the Head of Corporate and Legal Affairs of Agria
Corporation, a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange. Brothers Capital Limited, an investment
vehicle wholly-owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin,
largest shareholder of Agria Corporation. Mr. U is an

is the

independent director of GRP Limited, Miyoshi Precision
Limited and Ossia International Limited, all of which are
companies listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange.
Mr. U served as independent director of CPH Ltd
(formerly known as Circuits Plus Holdings Limited), a
company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange,
from December 2003 to July 2006, NTI International
Limited, a company listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange, from November 2004 to April 2007, New
Wave Holdings Ltd (formerly known as New Wave
Technologies Ltd), a company listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange, from December 2003 to July 2006,
Automated Touchstone Machines Limited, a company
formerly listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange,
from July 2005 to April 2007 and as non-executive
director of Radiance Group Limited (formerly known as
Radiance Electronics Limited), a company listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange, from 21st November 2007
to 2nd December 2009.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, aged 43, was
appointed as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in February 2009. Mr. Wong is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and member of Australia CPA
and Australasian Institute of Banking and Finance.
He holds a master of commerce degree, specializing
in Banking and Finance from the University of New
South Wales. With more than 19 years of experience
in PricewaterhouseCoopers and Ernst and Young, Mr.
Wong specializes in the area of auditing banks and
listed companies. Mr. Wong is an independent director
of Contel Corporation Limited, a company listed on
the Singapore Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was also
an independent director of Memory Devices Limited, a
company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange from
November 2005 to September 2008.

Mr. Chen Wei Wen, aged 42, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in April 2010. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Business
(Accounting) from Monash University, Australia. Mr.
Chen worked as a general manager of Guangzhou
Futian Trading Company Ltd. (EMTEARNESER
A@]) from 1997 to 2005. Since November 2004,
Mr. Chen was appointed as chief operating officer of
Guangzhou Kanxin Polymer Technology Co., Ltd. (&
TR LR FRHEEBMRAF]) which is an affilated
company of Guangzhou Futian Trading Company
Ltd. (BMTERESERAE). Mr. Chen was also
appointed as director and general manager of Fuda
Enterprises Limited (EMEMTEAERAFR) since
February 1998.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior. Management

Ms. Yang Li, aged 39, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 20th
January 2011. Ms. Yang holds a master degree in
Law from Renmin University of China, specializing
in philosophy, moral and political education. From
July 1993 to May 2005, Ms. Yang taught in Chinese
People’s Public Security University as assistant lecturer,
lecturer and associate professor. From June 2005 to
November 2006, Ms. Yang acted as deputy general
manager of the administration and management
department of China Exhibition Investment and
Development Corporation Ltd..
2006, she acted as manager, supervisor and general

Since December

manager of the administration department of = /RE2
RELR) DL AR AR, Ms. Yang has extensive
experience in corporate operation, human resources
and administration and management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tsang Wai Yip, Patrick, aged 42, was appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company in November 2009. Mr. Tsang is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Tsang had held various
finance positions in a number of listed companies and
has over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
corporate finance and investor relations.

Mr. Tsang Chung Yin, aged 65, is now the Honorary
Chairman of the pipe trading subsidiary, Bun Kee
(International) Limited, a company founded by his father
Mr. Tsang Bun in 1949. He was a former chairman of
the Company and has over 35 years of experience in
managing Bun Kee. Using his extensive experience and
network in the business, he is now actively involved in
the strategic development of Bun Kee. He is a member
of the Institute of Plumbing & Registered Plumber
(U.K.).
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Mr. Chan Churk Kai, aged 57, joined the Group in
1978 and is the managing director of the pipe trading
subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited. With over
32 years of experience in the trading of pipes, fittings
and other related accessories, he is responsible for the
development and supervision of the sales department.
Mr. Chan is an associate member of the Institute
of Plumbing and Heating Engineering (U.K.), Asian
Institute of Intelligent Buildings and the Hong Kong
Association of Energy Engineers. He is also a member
of Lions Club.

Ms. Chan Yuk Fan, aged 47, joined the Group in
1982 and is the sales director of the pipe trading
subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited. Ms. Chan is
responsible for the Group’s sales operations including
wholesale division, Hong Kong and Macau retail shops
and new product development. She is also responsible
for training new staff members of the sales and
marketing team of the Group. Ms. Chan has over 29
years of experience in the selling of pipes, fittings and
other related accessories.

Mr. Lai Kui Chung, aged 53, joined the Group
in 1979 and is the warehouse director of the pipe
trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited.
Mr. Lai is responsible for the warehouse and
transportation activities of the Group. He has over 30
years of experience in supervising warehouse and
transportation operations. Mr. Lai holds a Certificate in
Store Supervision from a technical institute.

Mr. Ku Chun Ming, aged 45, joined the Group in
1993 and is the associate sales director of the pipe
trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited.
Mr. Ku has over 21 years of experience in sales and
marketing activities. He is responsible for the sales
and promotion activities including the exhibitions and
seminars.
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China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and management maintain and enhance
the policies and practices of the Company on a timely,
transparent, effective and reasonable manner, so as
to maintain good, solid and reasonable corporate
governance. The Company believes that good
corporate governance is not only in the interest of
shareholders and investors but also in the interest of
the Company. The Company will continue to raise the
standard to formalize the best practice of corporate
governance as far as we could.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31st December 2010,
except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.4.1

The code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election.

As disclosed in the 2009 annual report and 2010
interim report of the Company, the non-executive
Directors of the Company (excluding the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company) were not
appointed for a specific term, which constitutes a
deviation from code provision A.4.1.
Directors of the Company are subject to retirement

However, all

by rotation at least once every three years and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company
pursuant to Company’s bye-law 99 which was
amended on 15th June 2006. As such, the Board
considered that sufficient measures have been taken
to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the

Corporate Governance Report

ﬁ%%/ﬂ

TEEXEEARQA(ARAE ) BNERSKFELZ

TCEER ARAEEE((ESFT]) REEEERFK
RAARRBER - BEAE  ARRAENBRLE

% WHRRL  BERAENEEER - AAFME
ERENEEERTEARRIKEENNERMA -
TREEARANNG - ARRBEBIRSFE  BK
BEREZLRERERTER -

SERERFEHTH

BEZZTZF+A=-+—HLFE AQR2F
ELTE%%QX%%ﬁEQT B4 EmRBI( ET
A B e Fru A TR 2 B EEVR B R SR ([ SRR
B SPRIESC - LA T IR BERR SN

FRMEE AL
FAMEXEAA VRN TEE C ZEEERETE
B WBEE SR E AR o

BUARB —TENEFFHRL T -TFHHAFER
Pt - KRR ZIFATER (T REBIIFNTES)
WIS TE L - BB RRE ST RRSCF A4.1 15
- RER-_FERFNATHABT ZARAAA
FOR ARBZMBEERRELE=FHERT—
R ARARRZBWERBFANEG LBEEE - lllt :
EXeRRCRIEAERERARRZEEE
MABER ST RMESC - AT > ERRFERER %*%EZ
ZRE - ARAESFRTEFEARRERFERRR] —

—ZE-ZFHFH Annual Report 2010

°'\

21



22

-~ Corporate Governance Report

/\"M\Aﬁﬂ:

provisions of the Code. Nevertheless, in view of good
corporate governance practices, each non-executive
Director of the Company has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company during the year for a
term until 31st December 2011. As such, the Company
has taken step to comply with the code provision A.4.1
of the Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 31st December 2010, the Board had ten
members, comprising three executive Directors, Mr.
Yu Ben Ansheng acting as Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, Mr. Sam Ming Choy acting as Chief
Operating Officer of the Company and Mr. Lai Fulin;
four non-executive Directors, Mr. Lai Guanglin acting as
the Chairman of the Company, Mr. U Kean Seng, Mr.
Zhao Yue and Dr. Samuel Zia; and three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson,
Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Ms. Wu Xiuru, one of whom
namely, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson has appropriate
professional accounting experience and expertise.

On 20th January 2011, Mr. Zhao Yue and Dr. Samuel Zia
resigned as non-executive Directors and Ms. Wu Xiuru
resigned as independent non-executive Director of the
Company. On the same day, Ms. Yang Li was appointed
as independent non-executive Director of the Company.

The Board has balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business.
The Board membership is covered by professionally
qualified and widely experienced personnel to bring
in valuable contributions and different professional
advices and consultancy for development of the
Company. All Directors have separate and independent
access to the advice and services of the senior
management and the company secretary with a view to
ensuring the board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. The principal functions
of the Board are to supervise the management of the
business and affairs; to approve the strategic plans,
investment and funding decision; to review the Group’s
financial performance and operating initiatives.
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The Board,
for the formulation of Group wide strategies and

led by the Chairman, is responsible
policies, including an oversight of the management.
Management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group under the leadership of the
executive Directors.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no
relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material relationship) among members of the
Board, except that Mr. Lai Guanglin, the non-executive
Director and Chairman of the Company, is the brother

of Mr. Lai Fulin, an executive Director of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that they are independent.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company. All the
non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by separate individuals
since 13th May 2009. The role of the Chairman is
separated from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce their
independence and accountability.
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On 28rd February 2009, Mr.
appointed as the Chairman and non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Lai Guanglin has taken up the
role of providing leadership for the Board and ensures

Lai Guanglin was

that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibility properly. With the support of executive
Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and receive
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
Mr. Lai also ensures that good corporate governance
practice is in force from time to time, and all key issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. On
13th May 2009, Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng was appointed as
an executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is responsible for managing the day-to-
day business of the Company.

Board Committees

A number of Board committees, including audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, have been established by the Board to
strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise.
Audit committee and remuneration committee have
been formed with specific written terms of reference
which deals clearly with the committees’ authority and

duties.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a
year, additional meetings are convened when deemed
necessary by the Board. Board members are provided
with complete, adequate and timely information to
allow the Directors to fulfill their duties properly. In
addition, Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.
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The Board held eight meetings during the year ended
31st December 2010. Due notice and board papers
were given to all Directors prior to the Board meetings
in accordance with the Code. The attendance records
of the Board meetings held in 2010 are set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng
Mr. Lai Fulin

Mr. Sam Ming Choy
Mr. Cai Shangwu Mete2

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lai Guanglin

Mr. U Kean Seng

Mr. Zhao Yue

Dr. Samuel Zia Mete4)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson

Mr. Lau Kwok Ting e

Ms. Wu Xiuru

Mr. Chen Wei Wen ®ete )

Notes:

1. Appointed on 21st April 2010.
2. Resigned on 1st May 2010.
3. Retired on 26th May 2010.

4. Appointed on 21st July 2010.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rule (the
“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry with the
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31st December
2010.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee
which, as at the date of this report, consists of two
independent non-executive Directors and one non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Wong Yee Shuen,
Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Mr. U Kean Seng.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Wong Yee
Shuen, Wilson who has the appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and financial management
expertise.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities
as to the Company’s financial statements, reporting,
internal control and audit findings. The Audit Committee
has met with the Company’s external auditor to
discuss the audit process and internal control issues
raised. A written terms of reference, which describes
the authority and duties of the Audit Committee, are
reviewed and updated by the Board from time to time
to comply with the code provision of the Code.
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During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed with
the management and the Company’s internal and/
or external auditor, where applicable, their respective
audit findings,
practices adopted by the Group, legal and regulatory
compliance, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters (including the annual financial

the accounting principles and

statements for the year ended 31st December 2009
and interim financial statements for the period ended
30th June 2010 before recommending them to the
Board for approval). In particular, the Audit Committee
monitored the integrity of financial statements of
the Company and the annual report and accounts
and interim report and accounts of the Company,
discussed such annual report and audited accounts
and interim report and accounts with management
and the Company’s auditors, and reviewed significant
financial reporting judgments contained therein.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and recommended
to the Board for approval of the 2010 audit fees and re-
appointment of the auditor of the Company.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the
year ended 31st December 2010. The attendance
records of the Audit Committee meetings held in 2010
are set out below:

Name of members

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson (Chairman)
Mr. U Kean Seng Mot

Mr. Chen Wei Wen Mete2)

Mr. Lau Kwok Ting Mete2

Ms. Wu Xiury Mete

Notes:

1. Mr. U was appointed as a member of Audit Committee
with effect from 21st April 2010.

2. Mr. Chen was appointed as a member of Audit
Committee in place of Mr. Lau with effect from 21st
April 2010.

3. Ms. Wu resigned as a member of Audit Committee with
effect from 21st April 2010.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee. As at the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises three members
including one non-executive Director and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lai Guanglin, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Ms. Yang Li.
It is chaired by Mr. Lai Guanglin. A written terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee has been
adopted with the reference to the Code.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
reviewing and recommending remuneration packages
of the executive Directors and senior management
of the Company to the Board. The remuneration
packages of the non-executive Directors of the
Company are determined by the Board.
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The Remuneration Committee held four meetings
during the year ended 31st December 2010. During
the meetings, the remuneration policy, remuneration
packages and bonus arrangements of the Directors
and senior management have been discussed and
approved.

The attendance records of the Remuneration
Committee meetings held in 2010 are set out below:

Name of members

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman) "te )
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Chen Wei Wen ®ote2

Mr. U Kean Seng ete )

Mr. Lau Kwok Ting Mete2

Mr. Wu Xiury Mote 3)

Notes:

1. Mr. Lai was appointed as a member and the chairman
of Remuneration Committee in place of Mr. U with
effect from 21st April 2010.

2. Mr. Chen was appointed as a member of Remuneration
Committee in place of Mr. Lau with effect from 21st
April 2010.

3. Ms. Wu resigned as a member of Remuneration
Committee with effect from 21st April 2010.

The Remuneration Committee also held a meeting on
20th January 2011. At the meeting, the Remuneration
Committee considered and approved the total
discretionary bonus for the Company’s Directors and
senior management for the year ended 31st December
2010 and reviewed and discussed the remuneration
policy for 2010 and the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management for 2010.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the
Company. As at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises three members including one
non-executive Director and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. U Kean Seng, Mr.
Chen Wei Wen and Ms. Yang Li. It is chaired by Mr. U
Kean Seng.

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is
making recommendations to the Board on appointment
and removal of directors and management of Board
succession.

In assessing nomination of new Directors, the
Nomination Committee has taken into consideration
of the candidate’s qualification, ability and potential
contribution to the Group. The Nomination Committee
has considered the past performance, experience and
qualification of directors, general market conditions and
practices and the Company’s bye-laws in selecting and
recommending directors for retirement by rotation.
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the year ended 31st December 2010. The attendance
records of the Nomination Committee meetings held in
2010 are set out below:

Attended/Eligible to attend

HEXRY SEEHERY
Name of members BEXS®
Mr. U Kean Seng (Chairman) et RPN (/) W=D 1/1
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson =LMESAE 2/2
Mr. Chen Wei Wen ®ete2 R (& <7 4 A (Wiz2) 11
Mr. Lai Guanglin Mete ) Lai Guanglin ¢ 4 (#7) 1/1
Mr. Lau Kwok Ting M2 2[5 T 4 A (iz2) 11
Ms. Wu Xiuru ete 9 B4 Wits) 11
Notes: Bsr
1. Mr. U was appointed as a member and the Chairman 1. REEEZARREZESHEREFURE Lait

of Nomination Committee in place of Mr. Lai with effect
from 21st April 2010.

2. Mr. Chen was appointed as a member of Nomination
Committee in place of Mr. Lau with effect from 21st
April 2010.

3. Ms. Wu resigned as a member of Nomination
Committee with effect from 21st April 2010.

The Nomination Committee discussed and reviewed
the Board composition of the Company as well as
other related matters. In addition, the Nomination
Committee recommended the appointment of other
directors to the Board for approval during the year
under review. The Nomination Committee also
conducted an annual review of the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
system of internal controls within the Group and for
reviewing their effectiveness. The system of internal
controls is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets and to ensure
the quality of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. It is
also designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that material misstatement or loss can be
avoided, and to manage and minimize risks of failure in
operation systems.

The Board engaged a professional consulting
firm to perform internal audit function to assess
the effectiveness of the financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Company and the Group’s major subsidiaries on a

rotation basis.

At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 23rd
March 2011,
reported their review work for the year ended 31st

the professional consulting firm had

December 2010 performed in accordance with the
detailed risk-based audit plan which was approved
by the Audit Committee. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, has conducted a review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems
for the year ended 31st December 2010. The Audit
Committee members, together with the senior
management, have also reviewed, considered and
discussed all findings relating to the internal control

systems and recommendations for improvement.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and was satisfied
with the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the auditor generally depends on
the scope and volume of the auditor’s work. For the
year ended 31st December 2010, the remunerations
to the auditor of the Company were approximately
HK$1,288,000 for audit services and HK$92,700 for
non-audit services comprising tax services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements. The senior management
provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of
the Company.

The responsibilities of the auditor of the Company with
respect to the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 49 to
51.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is obliged to provide regular, effective
and fair communication with shareholders of the
Company. Information is conveyed to the shareholders
of the Company on a timely basis. The Company
uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include general meetings, annual/
interim reports, various notices, announcements and
circulars. Such documents are sent to all shareholders
of the Company and/or its nominees and accessible on
the Company’s website. The detailed procedures for
conducting a poll have been explained by the Chairman
at the commencement of general meetings.

Shareholders’ views on matters that affect the
Company are welcome by the Board at shareholders’
meetings. Shareholders of the Company are notified of
shareholders’ meetings through notices and reports or
circulars sent to them. Each item of special business
in the notice of the meeting is accompanied, where
appropriate, by an explanation for the proposed
resolution. A separate resolution is proposed by the
chairman of the meetings in respect of each separate
issue, including the re-election of Directors. The
Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees or failing
this his duly appointed delegate, are available at the
annual general meeting to answer questions in regard
to the work of these committees.
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The Directors submit their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st
December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in Note 38 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December 2010 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 52.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2010.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 168.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year are set out in Note
26 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as
at 31st December 2010 are set out in Note 26 to the
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

CETER:

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 25 to the financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31st
December 2010 are set out in Note 27 to the financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
24th June 2004, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
of the Company was approved by shareholders of the
Company. Relevant information relating to the Scheme
is set out as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Scheme
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
and/or rewarding the participants.
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(b)

(©)

Participants of the Scheme

The board of Directors (the “Board”) may offer
to grant options to the participants which means
(i) any Director (including any executive director,
non-executive director or independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group;
(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time)
of any member of the Group; (i) any consultant,
adviser, supplier, customer or sub-contractor of
the Group; and (iv) any other person whatsoever
from time to time determined by the Board as
having contributed to the development, growth or
benefit of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the
general meeting of the Company approving the
Scheme. The maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme are 637,670,000 Shares,
representing approximately 4.78% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of this report.

(b)

()
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(d)

(©)

()

(©)]

(h)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including exercised
or outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the date of grant.

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised unless otherwise
specified in the relevant offer letter.

Period and payment on acceptance of options
Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is payable by
the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the option within 28 days from the date of grant
of the option.

Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect of
any particular option granted under the Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Board and
notified to the participants and shall be at
least the highest of (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (b) the average of the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

Life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company at
general meeting or by the Board, the life of the
Scheme commenced from 24th June 2004, date
of adoption, and will end on 23rd June 2014,
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Details of options granted, exercised, lapsed, REERN - BEBEFEERE - 176 K3 5FHK
cancelled and outstanding under the Scheme BARITERIEARIE 2 FF BT ¢

during the year are as follows:

Movement during the year
Enel
Held as at
Granted and 31st December
Exercise Price Held as at accepted 2010
il fstlanvary 2010 EHRHERH R-8-8%
Date of grant HKS  R-3-2% [note 3] Exercised Lapsed Cancelled +=A=t+-FH
Name of Directors £ 1.5 BiHA% & -A-R%% (Ht3) Bfife BRY Bit# it
Lal Fulin P94 BRg= 31202009 007 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000
Sam Ming Choy &4 Sam Ming Choy "= §12/2009 001 50000000 - - - - 50000000
U Kean Seng o= S 311212009 007t 30,000,000 - - - - 3000000
Tneo Yue =4 i 31202009 0071 30000000 - - - - 30000
Wong Yee Shuen, Wison (o4 & J)z 124 31202009 007 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
Lau Kok Ting o144 Bk 3122009 0071 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 - -
Chen Wi Wen 289 [y G 562010 (.083 - 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
W Xury 1o A 3122009 0071 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
Employegs =49 [g5 e 3122009 0071 402,000,000 - - 26,400,000 - 375,600,000
Employeg &5 2" 5512010 0.083 - 6,000,000 - - - 60000
592,000,000 16,000,000 - 36,400,000 - 571,600,000
Notes: FIRE -
1. Retired as independent non-executive director on 1. RIE—ZFRA-+ A HETABIYIENTE
26th May 2010. e
2. Appointed as independent non-executive director 2. RIZE—ZEFNAZ+—HZEEABILIENTE
on 21st April 2010. o
3. Pursuant to the Scheme, a total of 16,000,000 3. IR¥EFTE] - A43£16,000,000 REEIEN —T—F
options were granted on 5th May 2010 and FRHARAKRE  WREERAZR - BRONE
accepted by the grantees. The closing price of ZEREE L E BRI T{EA0.0798 T -
the shares immediately before the date on which
the share options were granted was HK$0.079.
4. The options granted to these grantees are vested 4., BTZEABANBRESOEBREE - WKT
in stages and be exercised in the following H T AT
manner:
Maximum percentage of options exercisable Exercise Period
Az ERESRRE DL 1T HA
20% 3/6/2010 - 2/12/2019
40% 3/6/2011 - 2/12/2019
60% 3/6/2012 - 2/12/2019
80% 3/6/2013 — 2/12/2019
100% 3/6/2014 — 2/12/2019
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5. The options granted to these grantees are vested
in stages and be exercised in the following
manner:

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

ATEZERESESE L

20%
40%
60%
80%
100%

6. Vesting of options granted to certain employees
is subject to achievement of profit target.

Details of the fair value of options granted under the
Scheme during the year ended 31st December 2010
and the accounting policy adopted for the options are
set out in Note 8 and Note 2 to the financial statements
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option scheme of the Company,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Sam Ming Choy (Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Lai Fulin

Mr. Cai Shangwu et )

China Pipe Group Limited #EIE%&£®EHERATE
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TTEH

5/11/2010 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2011 - 4/56/2020
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5/11/2014 - 4/5/2020
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman)

Mr. U Kean Seng

Mr. Zhao Yug (te2)

Dr. Samuel Zia e

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson

Mr. Lau Kwok Ting ®ete 4

Ms. Wu Xiury (ete2)

Mr. Chen Wei Wen (ot )

Ms. Yang Li et

Notes:

1. Resigned on 1st May 2010.

2. Resigned on 20th January 2011.

3. Appointed on 21st July 2010 and resigned on 20th
January 2011.

4. Retired on 26th May 2010.

5. Appointed on 21st April 2010.

6. Appointed on 20th January 2011.

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Lai Guanglin, Mr. U Kean Seng and Mr.
Sam Ming Choy will retire from office by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-laws
of the Company, Ms. Yang Li will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer herself for re-election.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considers that all of them are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out in the Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management section of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company has entered into any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 33 to financial statements,
no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered by the

Group during the year ended 31st December 2010 are
disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates
has an interest in any business which competes or
may compete with the business in which the Group
engaged.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31st December 2010, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were set out below:
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CETER:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares RAEATROREBROZEE
of the Company
Number of
underlying Approximate
shares held percentage
Number of shares of the Company pursuant to of shares
SRR ABA share options in issue
Personal Family Corporate Other R RRE BT
Name of Directors Capacity Interests  Interests Interests  Interests BRZHR Total Rk
F£4:3 f BARE  REES EIRE EfEs Kir8H #t Bt
(note 3)
(Hizt3)
Lai Guanglin Interest of controlled - - 71,705,521,207 - - 7,705,521,207 57.79%
~_corporation (note 1HE1)
AR
Yu Ben Ansheng Beneficial owner/Interest of 30,000,000 - 1,460,000,000 - - 1,490,000,000 1.18%
aRE controlled corporation (note 2zt 2)
BilE A/ R EEER
Lai Fulin Benefloial owner - - - - 50,000,000 50,000,000 0.38%
ERE ERBEA
Sam Ming Choy Beneficial owner - - - - 50,000,000 50,000,000 0.38%
ERBEA
U Kean Seng Beneﬂcial owner - - - - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.23%
RER EGERA
Zhao Yue Beneficial owner - - - - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.23%
il ERBAA
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson  Beneficial owner - - - - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.08%
EDAS ERBAEA
Chen Wei Wen Beneficial owner - - - - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.08%
REX ERBBEA
Wu Xiru Beneficial owner - - - - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.08%
REH ERBEA
Notes: B RE

1.

China

These shares are held by Singapore Zhongxin
Investment Company Limited (“Singapore Zhongxin”),
which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lai
Guanglin, a non-executive Director and Chairman of
the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Lai is deemed to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.

These shares are held by King Jade Holdings Limited
(“King Jade”), which is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director of
the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.

The interests in the underlying shares represented share
options granted pursuant to the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 24th June 2004. Details of
share options are set out in the above section headed
“Share Option Scheme”.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December
2010, none of the Directors or chief executive or
their respective associates had any interests or short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2010, the interests or short
positions of the following persons or corporations,
other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Long position in share and underlying share of the

Company
Name of Shareholders Capacity
BRAE S

Singapore Zhongxin (note 1 FiizE 1) Bengficial owner

EREEA

Li Juan 2218 (note 2 i3 2) Interest of spouse
i

King Jade (note 35+ 3) Bengficial owner
ERBEBA

Zhang Lin (note 4 K{3£4) Interest of spouse
[

Notes:

1. Singapore Zhongxin is wholly and beneficially owned

by Mr. Lai Guanglin, a non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Lai is
deemed to be interested in such shares under the SFO.
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sl HRRASE #BhEsk
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1,460,000,000 10.95%
1,490,000,000 11.18%
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2. Ms. Li Juan, the spouse of Mr. Lai, is also deemed to
be interested in Mr. Lai’s interest in the Company under
the SFO.

3. King Jade is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yu
Ben Ansheng, an executive Director of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to be interested in such
shares under the SFO.

4. Ms. Zhang Lin, the spouse of Mr. Yu, is also deemed to
be interested in Mr. Yu’s interest in the Company under
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2010,
the Company had not been notified by any persons or
corporations, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 25.60%
— five largest suppliers combined 59.68%
Sales
—the largest customer 6.38%
— five largest customers combined 16.37%

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major suppliers or customers

noted above.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE
ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31st December 2010,
except for code provision A.4.1. Please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 21 to 34 for
details.

Details of the audit committee and remuneration
committee are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee currently consists of two
independent non-executive Directors and one non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Wong Yee Shuen,
Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Mr. U Kean Seng.

By reference to “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the HKICPA, written terms
of reference which describe the authority and duties of
the audit committee were prepared and adopted by the
Board of the Company.

The annual results have been reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Details of significant events which have been taken
place subsequent to the balance sheet date are set out
in Note 35 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EERRE

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float required under the Listing Rules as at the date of
this report.

AUDITOR
The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

Lai Guanglin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th March 2011

China Pipe Group Limited #EIE%&£®EHERATE
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Independent.Auditor’s Repc

 BUREERS

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORKESTTEERAT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 52 to 167, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31st December
2010, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

BHhEERKEARLFERE
(REFEZME LA BRAF])

ARz EED AT B [F ) ERATNENE52E 167
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TESHRRUBER MM EREER -
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BREENREBCARIGIDOREREREZEY
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REEFRERAL
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dependent Auditor’s Report
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50

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE
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Independent.Auditor’s Repdﬁ__i\
_BUBRBEREE W,

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31st December 2010,
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th March 2011
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For the year ended 31st December 2010
HE_T-TE+_A=1+—HILEE

Continuing operations:
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss on land use rights
Impairment loss on goodwill
Other gains, net
Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

Operating loss
Finance costs, net

Loss before income tax
Tax credit

Loss for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operation:
Loss for the year from
discontinued operation

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
Basic and diluted
From continuing operations
From discontinued operation

Dividend

The notes on pages 59 to 167 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

FEEEET -
L UN
SHERAN

EF

ME - BEAREZ
B

=+ s A R E TR
a2 REE1E
Hofth Wz 558
HE R HRA

—M AT E B

=B

BT B RFRR

iR E R
HIRE R

REZEXGZ
FREIE

RUPEERT -
RIEZBBREZ
FEER

FEER

1S
EN/NCIEE- ZEE SN
ESElle gy £

FhER
ERL S
SEEEE
R EBR

i S

Note
B =E

14, 34(ii)

15, 34(iii)
16, 34(jii)
6

©

10

24

12

13

Restated
&E7
2010 2009
—Z—2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAIT
516,479 452,018
(425,836) (881,077)
90,643 70,941
(98,900) -
(2,471) -
(23,050) -
552 5,534
(12,807) (12,102)
(97,255) (80,470)
(143,288) (16,097)
(14,578) (9,175)
(157,866) (25,272)
5,638 2,221
(152,228) (23,051)
(14,855) (16,346)
(167,083) (89,397)
(122,769) (839,662)
(44,314) 265
(167,083) (89,397)
HK cents HK cents
&l I
(0.81) (0.18)
(0.11) (0.13)
(0.92) (0.31)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAIT

F69E 167 H 2 MFERILFMEIRR 2 AKEED



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

rE = -"lr-..'

For the year ended 31st December 2010
HE-_Z-—ZTE+-_A=1+—HItFE

2010 2009
25 ZETNF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEE T#T FAT
Loss for the year FEEE (167,083) (39,397)
Other comprehensive income: Efth =AWl
Currency translation differences B E =R 4,617 576
Release of exchange reserve EEANERBARZ 32(0) (15,488) =
upon disposal of subsidiaries B 34, (et 48 2 [el #8%
Total comprehensive income for the year — FE 2 MW S48 (177,954) (38,821)
Attributable to: FE1G -
Equity holders of the Company RAGIRREREE A (133,747) (39,092)
Non-controlling interests P A (44,207) 271
(177,954) (38,821)

The notes on pages 59 to 167 are an integral part of FH50E 167 B 23T B EM SRR 28K EED °
these financial statements.
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onsolidated.Balance Sheet

CABESER

As at 31st December 2010
R-F—FF+_A=1+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights

Goodwill

Investment properties

Deferred tax assets

Rental deposits and other assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Pledged bank deposit
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held-for-sale

Total assets

The notes on pages 59 to 167 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

FRBRE

WE - BEMEE
TR

wE

REME
EEHBEE
BHmeRAMEE

nERE

(E3

B 5 R E YR
BIRITIEN
ReRBEEEY

RIEHEEE

Note

14
15
16
17
28
21

20
21
22
23

24

31st December

31st December

2010 2009
—E2-2F “TENF
+=RA=+—-R | tZA=1—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
10,109 118,485
28,462 30,535

- 22,787

- 185,231

4,578 11,761
3,196 3,061
46,345 371,860
230,545 180,448
166,446 163,440
92,789 38,576
62,230 55,784
552,010 438,248
- 114,680
552,010 552,928
598,355 924,788

F 59 E 167 B Z M A FETEHRE 2 BER S



Consolidated.Balance-She

 BAHUESME

As at 31st December 2010
R-F-—FF+-A=1+—H

31st December | 31st December
2010 2009
—E—2F ZETNF
+=ZBA=+—8 |+=A=1+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
fIEE FHET FBT
EQUITY e
Equity holders BAEIBEA
Share capital (&N 25 26,665 26,665
Reserves — others i — o 26 259,742 388,385
286,407 415,050
Non-controlling interests FERRGIHES (11,114) 33,093
Total equity HEa 275,293 448,143
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Borrowings (=R 27 - 39,973
Deferred tax liabilities FIETIBEE 28 4,541 18,736
4,541 58,709
Current liabilities nBAR
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMEFIE 29 142,837 95,691
Amount due to a related company FESRIE R R IE 33 876 23,449
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder FEft —fizIEIEFIMERR R KB 33 17 133
Loan from a shareholder BRE 33 - 59,881
Taxation payable FERFLIR 749 631
Borrowings BE 27 174,042 238,151
318,521 417,936
Total liabilities Ham| 323,062 476,645
Total equity and liabilities HESRAR 598,355 924,788
Net current assets MENEE RS 233,489 134,992
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTHAR 279,834 506,852
Lai Guanglin Yu Ben Ansheng Lai Guanglin ARE
Director Director EZE EE

The notes on pages 59 to 167 are an integral part of E59E 167 B2 Mt AU FM B mR < D -

these financial statements.
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As at 31st December 2010
R-F—FF+_A=1+—H

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Deposits, prepayments

and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity holders
Share capital

Reserves — others

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Loan from a shareholder

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current (liabilities)/assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Lai Guanglin
Director

The notes on pages 59 to 167 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

Director

"E

FRBEE

ME -~ BE&RE
REBARIRE

mENEE

wE -~ BARR
H A e WA

JRE U5 PRI 2 B FIR

RekReFED

HRE

o
BRiESAA
B
et — E

s

AR

mENR R

H At A 5RIR
FEIPT B X RIFIR
BRER

HAR
HERRAR

wE(AfR) REFH

HRERTHAR

Yu Ben Ansheng

31st December | 31st December
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThEF
+=BA=+—H |+t =A=1+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
b FTHET FA&T
14 224 -
18 88,482 96,901
88,706 96,901
21 1,328 403
18 28,479 256,724
23 680 877
30,487 258,004
119,193 354,905
25 26,665 26,665
26 (15,598) 161,983
11,067 188,648
29 8,148 1,200
18 99,978 105,176
&8 - 59,881
108,126 166,257
119,193 354,905
(77,639) O1,747
11,067 188,648

Lai Guanglin BRE

EEa EFE

FEH9E167 B2 A EMISHRER 2 AR o



At 1st January 2009

Loss for the year
Qther comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Transactions with owners;
Issue of new shares

for an acquistion of

a subsidiary
Share based payment
Acquisttion of a subsidiary

At 31st December 2009

At 1st January 2010

Loss for the year
Qther comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences
Release of exchange reserve
upon disposal of subsidliaries

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Transactions with owners:;
Share based payment

At 31st December 2010

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equi

Note
iz

R-EENE—/-R

EnRR
Efb2EiaE
ERREER

FEEEME
LE)

BEEARS:
YIRS
~ZHBAF

25,26
WA BERH
WE-FMEAA 3

R-EENET-A=1-H
R=-2-2%—F-A

EnER
Efb2Eia
ERROEE
HEMBATZER
PAE S

FnzEka
it

RS
R RERAHTR

320)

RZ$-BF+ZA=1-H

 BARR®E

For the year ended 31st December 2010
HE_ZT-ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

Equity holders
RignaEA
Share

based Non-

Share  Share  Capital Merger Exchange payment Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Sub-total interests  Total

WRirE FHh
Bk RIVRE EXRE AHEE ERGHEEROHR REEN 0 oM #ER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKH000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000
TET TET TET THT TET TET THET TER TEn TER
25006 79418 34116 3700 16343 - 245983 404,624 - 404,624
- - - - - - (39662 (39,662 265 (39,397)
- - - - 570 - - 570 6 576
- - - - 510 - (39662 (39,09 21 (38821)
1,600 47,200 - - - - - 48800 - 48800
- - - - - 718 - 718 - 718
- - - - - - - - N8R N8
1,600 47,200 - - - 78 - 49518 32822 82,340
26605 126618 341156 3700 16913 718 206321 415060 33093 448,143
26665 126618 34,115 3700 16913 718 206321 415050 33,093 448,143
- - - - - - (122,769) (122,769) (44,314) (167,083)
- - - - 4510 - - 4510 107 4617
- - - - (15,489) - - (15489) - (15,488)
- - - - (10978 - (122,769) (133,747) (44,207) (177,954)
- - - - - 5104 - 5104 - 5104
26,665 126618 34115 3700 5935 5822 83552 286407 (11,114) 275,293

The notes on pages 59 to 167 are an integral part of
these financial statements.

FH9E167 B2 A EMIEHRER 2 AKED o
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nsolidated.Statement of Cash Flows

SEBSRBR

For the year ended 31st December 2010
HE_T-TE+_A=1+—HILEE

2010 2009
-5 “ZTNE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE THT TAT
Cash flows from operating activities BEEBZHERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations ReEL (R /EE2RE  32040) (2,083) 111,067
Interest paid ERFE (23,991) (7,049)
Interest received BUFE 307 110
Income tax paid BERAEH (1,332) 4,212)
Net cash (used in)/generated from LEES (FTR),/FiE
operating activities fﬁﬁﬁ*%’ﬁ (27,099) 99,916
Cash flows from investing activities BREXBZRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAYE BB R (2,187) (4,098)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « BEMR
plant and equipment FTiSsE 22 -
Proceeds from disposal of assets held-for-sale  HEFEHEEEFSZIA 114,680 =
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—RHTB A 32(b) - 21,128)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 32(c) 161,235 =
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities REESNE/(FTR) B F8 273,750 (25,226)
Cash flows from financing activities MEFHZRERE
Drawdown of borrowings RAREE 372,539 238,232
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (481,106) (320,785)
(Repayment)/drawdown of (B®) /RA—%
loan from a shareholder BRERER (54,360) 24,868
(Repayment)/drawdown of (ER) 1R
amount due to a related company (NI F O (23,468) 22,869
Increase in pledged bank deposit HIRRI T 5038 0 (53,674) (1,428)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBTAREFE (240,069) (36,244)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re MR SEYIL NG 6,582 38,446
Exchange differences fE R (136) 22
Cash, cash equivalents and bank EY2BEE  BHeEEY
overdrafts at beginning of the year RRITES 55,784 17,316
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRZBGRBEESERD
the year 62,230 55,784

The notes on pages 59 to 167 are an integral part of F59E 167 B 2 B S #RE 2 AR E D ©
these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Stateme

General information

China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in trading of construction
materials, mainly pipes and fittings and
manufacturing and sale of seamless steel pipes.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. The Company
has its primary listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong
Kong Stock Exchangge”).

These financial statements are presented in HK
dollars, unless otherwise stated.

During the past two years, the major changes in
the Group are as follows:

On 11th November 2009, the Group completed
the acquisiton of 60% equity interest in f&
ESHERENMET AR AR (Yantai Kiyofo
Seamless Steel Pipe Co., Ltd) (“Kiyofo”) for cash
consideration of RMB18 million and issue of
800,000,000 new shares of the Company. Details
of the acquisition are set out in Note 34.

On 21st December 2010, the Group completed
the disposal of the entire equity interest in
Noble Win International Limited (which holds
investment properties in Mainland China through
its subsidiaries, details are set out in Note
5), at a cash consideration of approximately
RMB139,303,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$162,666,000).
approximately HK$12,847,000 was recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Details of the

Gain on disposal of

disposal are set out in Note 32(c).

(i

Bt 7 3R 7R Bfd &

—REH

PREXEEFRAR(ARF)) REHREAR
(8 [ARE ) T2 EZEMH (EBRRE
MEM) 2B AR EENHERENE -

AprlA—HEAREZIMEKLZBRAT - 5F
it =E 674 Canon’ s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda ° AR BIEEBIEA
RGFBRAR( BB ERIEE— L
T o

BRIER BRI - AMBERERIABTZS -
BEMF  AEBZ T2EFHMT :

R-ZZTNAE+—AB+—8  REBZKKREE
EoRLeEENEGRAR ([S£HME]) 2 60%M
ANiEzs - REBAKRE 18,000,000 T2 REN(E
% E17800,000,000 BR AR & K TR 10 - UKBEFF
TBERMRE 34 WILEE o

M-ZE—ZTHE+-_F-+—0 AEBEKEE
HRBBEAR AR (BRBEKBRRZFENRF
B AR E WS - IR IERMES) 2 A
Az - BeRELHARKE 139,303,000
(FBER47162,666,00087T) ° HEZ KK A
12,847,000 T E R4r & Wz R AR o HEFF
B3I SR HTEE 32(c) °
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Basis of preparation and accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of investment properties, which
were carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE
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Notes to the Financial Statemer

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

Adoption of new and revised standards

The Group has adopted the following revised

standards, amendment to existing standard

and interpretation, which are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st

January 2010 and relevant to the Group.

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and
Separate Financial
Statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HK-Int 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Classification by the
Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on
Demand Clause

Annual improvements to HKFRSs published in
May 2009

HKAS 17
(Amendment)

Leases

The Group has assessed the impact of the
adoption of these revised standards, amendment
to existing standard and interpretation and
considered that there was no significant impact
on the Group’s results and financial position
nor any substantial changes in the Group’s
accounting policies and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

2.

. BIBWRME

WEEEREEER (W)

ERANFT T R RIS RT 2R

AER B 2 PR AN T D B AN R B R A AR R VAR B AT Y
28 - BIRBERNZEFT R2iE - WRHHEAR
—E-TF-A-HEMENS RN RS

RIETT °

HBEeEL RA BN S S®E
527 9% (FERT)
BBMIEHRE B S
RIS 358 (&1EET)
BERIEE SR SRz 2 25—
EBERAHBSIHEK
BEERZEHER
2088
RZZTZENF A B AHREE BT BHREELZ2F
EIEET
BRG] AL
F175: (185])

AEBE A RAZFEIERTER - HIREER
ZEARREBRITZE RRYAKBZERER
MRS BEATE - METBRLAERETTE
BREHN MBI ERNLE -
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Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

Adoption of new and revised standards
(cont’d)

HKAS 17 (Amendment), “Leases”,
specific guidance regarding classification of

deletes

leases of land, so as to eliminate inconsistency
with the general guidance on lease classification.
As a result, leases of land should be classified as
either finance or operating lease using the general
principles of HKAS 17, i.e. whether the lease
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee.
The Group has reassessed the classification of
unexpired leasehold land prepayment as at 1st
January 2010 on the basis of information existing
at the inception of those leases, and continued to
classify the leasehold land in Mainland China as
operating lease under “Land use rights”.

HKAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements”. The revised standard
requires the effects of all transactions with non-
controlling interests to be recorded in equity
if there is no change in control and these
transactions will no longer result in goodwill
or gains and losses. When control is lost, any
remaining interest in the entity is remeasured
to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss. HKAS 27 (Revised) had no impact
on the current period, as there have been no
transactions with non-controlling interests.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

otes.to the Einancial Statements

2.

WEEEREEER (W)

ERANFTET R RS RT 2R (80

FREEHERFE7 SRUERD L] - MERE L
MEZ D BEMRERA - ELOBREED BN —
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Notes to the Financial Stateme

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

Adoption of new and revised standards
(cont’d)

HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business Combinations”.
HKFRS 3 (Revised) continues to apply the
acquisition method to business combinations
but with some significant changes compared
with  HKFRS 3. For example, all payments
to purchase a business are recorded at fair
value at the acquisition date, with contingent
payments classified as debt subsequently
remeasured through the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. There is a choice on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets. All acquisition-related costs are
expensed. HKFRS 3 (Revised) had no impact on
the current period as there has been no business
combinations.

HK-Int 5, “Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause”.
HK Int-5 provides guidance on the classification
by the borrower of a term loan that contains a
repayment on demand clause, with reference to
the criteria for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current as set out in paragraph 69 of
HKAS 1. HK Int-5 had no significant impact on
current and prior periods.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting

policies (cont’d)

Adoption of new and revised standards
(cont’d)

The following new standard and amendments
to existing standards have been published and
are relevant to the Group’s operation. They are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2011 or later
periods, the Group has not early adopted them:

HKAS 12 Deferred tax:
(Amendment) Recovery of
underlying assets
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party
Disclosures
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Annual improvements to HKFRSs published in

May 2010

HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements

HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:

Disclosures

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new and
revised standards and amendments to existing
standards but is not yet in a position to state
whether they would have a significant impact on
its results of operations and financial position.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements

include the financial statements of the

Company and all of its subsidiaries made

up to 31st December.

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
special
which the Group has the power to

purpose entities) over

govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(@) Consolidation (cont’d)

(i)

Acquisitions

For acquisitions prior to 1st July
2009, the cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent
of any non-controlling interest.
Non-controlling interest is initially
measured at its share of fair value of
the subsidiaries’ identifiable assets
and liabilities at the date of acquisition
by the Group. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition
is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

For acquisition on or after 1st July
2009, as a result of the adoption
of HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business
Combinations”, accounting for
acquisition of subsidiaries is as

follows:
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statemer

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

Consolidation (cont’d)

(i)

Acquisitions (cont’d)

The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary
is the fair value of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred
and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.
|dentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at
fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets. The excess
of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
this is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.
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2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

Consolidation (cont’d)

(i)

Acquisitions (cont’d)

Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary in the consolidated
financial statements to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried
on the balance sheet of the Company
at cost together with advances by
the Company which are neither
planned nor likely to be settled in the
foreseeable future, less provision for
impairment. Provision for impairment
in a subsidiary is made when the
recoverable amount of the subsidiary
is lower than the Company’s
respective cost of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statemer

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

Consolidation (cont’d)

(i)

Transactions with non-controlling
interests

The Group treats transactions
with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of
the Group. For purchases from non-
controlling interests, the difference
between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

When the Group ceases to have
control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with
the change in carrying amount
recognised in consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In
addition,
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are

accounted for as if the Group had

any amounts previously

directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(b) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker has been identified as the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of operating
segments. Operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segment has similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products, the nature of
production processes and the type or class
of customers.

(c) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional

and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statement:

. PBHmRME

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(c) Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions
or revaluation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the
income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of
all the Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional
currency different from the
presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as
follows:

— assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;
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2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(c)

Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

(i)

Group companies (cont’d)
- income and expenses for
each income statement are
translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and
- all resulting exchange
differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
On consolidation, exchange
differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed
of or sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain

or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rates at the
balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statemer

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(d

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, comprising
buildings, leasehold improvements, plant
and machinery, equipment, furniture and
fixtures and motor vehicles are stated
at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’'s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance expenses
are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
Depreciation of building, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Buildings 20-30 years

Machinery and 3-10 years
equipment

Leasehold 5 years or the
improvements lease period,

if shorter

Office furniture, 3-5 years
fixtures and fittings

Computer equipment 3-5 years

Office equipment 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 3-5 years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

The gains or losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment is the
difference between net sales proceeds and
the carrying amounts and are recognised in
profit or loss.

(e) Land use rights
The upfront prepayments made for land
use rights are expensed in the income
statement on a straight line basis over the
period of the operating lease or when there
is impairment, it is recognised immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statement:

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

U]

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Separately recognised goodwill is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. It is tested for impairment annually
and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses on separately recognised
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose identified according to
operating segment.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(9)

Investment properties

Property that is held to earn rental income
or for capital appreciation or both and is
not occupied by the Group, is classified
as investment property. Investment
properties are measured initially at costs
including related transaction costs
and are subsequently carried at fair
value determined annually by external
independent valuers at each balance sheet
date. Changes in fair value are recognised

in the profit or loss.

These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by
the Hong Kong Institution of Surveyors
(“HKIS”) Valuation Standards. These
valuations are reviewed annually by external
valuers.

Land held under operating lease is
classified and accounted for as investment
property when the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it were a finance lease.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Stateme

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(h)

U]

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life,
for example goodwill, are not subject
to amortisation and are at least tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (i.e. CGUs). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Receipts or payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives
paid to lessees or received from the lessor)
are recognised as income or expenses in
the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

When assets are leased out under an
operating lease, the asset is included in the
balance sheet based on the nature of the
asset.
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2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

0

(k)

Non-current assets held-for-sale
Non-current assets are classified as assets
held-for-sale when their carrying amount is
to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. Investment properties reclassified
as non-current assets held-for-sale are
stated at their fair values.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. For the segment
of trading of pipes and fittings, cost is
calculated on the first-in, first-out method.
For the segment of manufacturing and sale
of seamless steel pipes, cost is determined
on a weighted average basis and, in the
case of work in progress and finished
goods, cost comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statemer

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

U]

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement.
When trade and other receivables are
uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand and deposits held at call with banks.
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Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(n)

(o)

(P)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after
the balance sheet date.
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2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(q)

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Employee leaves

Employee entitlements to annual
leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus
payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are
expected to be settled within twelve
months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.

2.

WEEEREETER ()

(a) EEEF

()

(i)

1ESRA
BEAZH 2 FBRAERFHRREE
R AKECHRBEGEEALEER
HIRB M ZFE FR G AERR
ffa e

EERZAE ZRBREBRESHRARE
RFIERR o

TEATAT &)
AEEREBMRE 2 R MERR
R 2EEREEEME - BRerSfh
ATt B R - BRIEA S R A S
RR—RAE-

fEALsr 8l 2 B EFEHHR 1218 A RE
& WIRREAREERRSTNZ
LHETE -

—ZE—FHFFH Annual Report 2010

81



82

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(i)

Pension obligations

Following the adoption of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme in December 2000, all
employees of the Group employed in
Hong Kong joined the MPF Scheme.
Under this scheme, employees
and the Group are required to
make contributions to the scheme
calculated at 5% of the individual
employee’s monthly basic salaries,
subject to a cap of HK$1,000. The
Group’s contributions to this scheme
are expensed when they are due.
The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s employees in the
People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) are covered by various
government sponsored pension
plans. These government agencies
are responsible for the pension
liabilities to these employees. The
relevant group companies pay
monthly contributions to these
pension plans based on certain
percentages of the salaries, subject to
a certain ceiling.

Under these plans, the Group has
no legal or constructive obligation
to make further payments once the
required contributions have been
paid. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statemer

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(iv)

Share-based payment

The Group operates equity-settled,
share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives
services from employees as
considerations for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-
market service and performance
vesting conditions. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At
each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital (hominal
value) and share premium when the
options are exercised.

2.

. BIWRME

WEEEREETER ()

(a)

EEER (8

()

KR BERZ (T

REBHTIEBRALEE - AR T
HIEEtE - UBEEBRERISE
RUWERA S BRAT A (B 1R
B - BB RHRGAREBEREN D
RETIERFFS - RREMAIE
FXESHE  H2RERDERE
MAREBEETE - TRETAEBRS
RREWFTERBIGTNTE - F
mERBGREEREEHENEER
BREHEENRRA - AEREREB
HIRETA - REHMEEREMBREET
BBIRTAMENGRE - REEER
AEBEGSRENIEMSHEBIRIENR
HEFH RS ERAERERE - &
HRERMGFBFHEE (W) AR

WS FE PR - LR B IR A AR
ﬁko

REBRETTERS - PRISSNIAMBRER
RBRAFT ABA (E{E) B

—ZE—FHFFH Annual Report 2010

83



84

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(r)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised
in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

2.

WEEEREETER ()

(r

BNSA R AR SE B IR

HA 2 B IR s el B HA RO SE B TR AR X ©
BIERGR A WS RPH#ER R TRARRE
fhEmlm AR E R ARE ZA
B - ERIAIE D IR E it 2 s A
RHE AT A

SRR REARARF REME QA
LBEMERELERRBBVANBRNGEE
FERMAXEERGORBEPFE - E
BEERERRBEVREARRNBERLE
HFHE BB RN YEERBERTR
IRIE BRI B S O R SRR e

BEERENERRAABEREEARBZ
MERCHEM BRI ZEEEMEZE
REREZHEBME EEHEARBELER
BRIC B ELREM  XERREZET
MRBEBERNELCHARREREKEAY
HERALHEMETE °



2.

Notes to the Financial Statement:

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

U]

Current and deferred income tax
(cont’d)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(s)

(t)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present
value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods and services, net of
value-added tax, rebates, returns and
discounts and after eliminating sales within
the Group. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and
when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described

below.

(i) Sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered to customers, the
customer has accepted the products
and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statemer

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(i)  Gross rental income from investment
properties is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the periods of the
respective leases.

(i)  Interest income is recognised on
a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

(v) Dividend income is recognised
when the right to receive payment is
established.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability
in the Group’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved
by the Company’s shareholders.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts
that require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially
recognised at their fair value, and
subsequently measured at the higher
of (i) the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation; and (i)
the amount required to be settled by
the guarantor in respect of the financial
guarantee contracts at the balance sheet
date.
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3.

Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
and counterparty risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s financial risk management focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance
by actively managing debt level and cash
flow in order to maintain a strong financial
position and minimising refinancing and
liquidity risks by attaining healthy debt
repayment capacity, appropriate maturity
profile and availability of banking facilities.
The Group adheres to a policy of financial
prudence and did not use any structured
financial products during the year.

(@  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally
in Hong Kong and in Mainland
China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the
United States dollars (“USD”)
and Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from
future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities,
which are denominated in
a currency that is not the
functional currency of the
entities of the Group. In order
to mitigate the foreign currency
risk, the Group has been closely
monitoring its foreign currency
exposure and requirements
and will arrange for any hedging
facilities if necessary.
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Notes to the Financial Statement:

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk (cont’d)

@

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (cont’d)
As HKD is pegged against
USD, the Group is exposed
to limited exchange rate
fluctuation. As a result, the
exchange rate risk exposure
in respect of USD is not
significant. While for RMB,
the exchange rate fluctuation
is relatively volatile. At 31st
December 2010, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by
5% (2009: 5%) against HKD
with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss would
have been HK$217,000 (2009:
HK$87,000) lower/higher
respectively mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of RMB-
denominated financial assets
and liabilities.

Interest rate risk

Other than bank balances and
deposits (the “Interest Bearing
Assets”) specified in Note 22
and 23, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing
assets as at the end of 2010.
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3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)
Market risk (cont’d)

@

(i)

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

The Group’s interest rate risk
arises from borrowings (the
“Interest Bearing Liabilities”) as
set out in Note 27. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The
Group also analyses its interest
rate exposure periodically
by considering refinancing,
renewal of existing positions
and alternative financing.
As at 31st December 2010,
the Group’s Interest Bearing
Liabilities issued at variable
rates include bank borrowings
of HK$174,042,000 (2009:
HK$243,822,000) and loan
from a shareholder of nil (2009:
HK$49,360,000) whereas
Interest Bearing Liabilities
issued at fixed rates include
bank borrowings of nil (2009:
HK$34,302,000), loan from
a shareholder of nil (2009:
HK$5,000,000) and amount
due to a related company of nil
(2009: HK$22,869,000).
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3.

Notes to the Financial Statemer

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)
Market risk (cont’d)

@

(i)

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

At 31st December 2010, with all
other variables held constant, if
the interest rate on HK dollar-
denominated borrowings at
variable interest rate, bank
balances and deposits had
increased/decreased by 10
basis points (2009: 10 basis
points), the corresponding
decrease/increase in net
finance costs (representing
interest income on the Interest
Bearing Assets less interest
expenses on Interest Bearing
Liabilities) would have resulted
in an decrease/increase in the
Group’s loss after taxation
by HK$99,000 (2009: the
corresponding
decrease in net finance costs

increase/
would have resulted in an
increase/decrease in the
Group’s loss after taxation by
HK$31,000). At 31st December
2010,

RMB-denominated borrowings

if the interest rate on

at variable interest rate, bank
balances and deposits had
increased/decreased by 75
basis points (2009: 25 basis
points), the corresponding
increase/decrease in net finance
costs would have resulted in
an increase/decrease in the
Group’s loss after taxation
by HK$403,000 (20009:
HK$207,000).
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3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

@

(b)

Market risk (cont’d)

(i) Interest rate risk (cont’d)
The Group has not used any
interest rate swap to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit risk mainly arises from bank
deposits and trade and other
receivables. The carrying amounts of
these balances substantially represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit and counterparty risk in relation
to financial assets.

As at 31st December 2009 and
2010, all the bank deposits are
deposited in high-quality financial
institutions without significant credit
risk. The credit risk on bank deposits
is limited because over 60% of the
Group’s bank balances are placed
with subsidiaries of state-owned
banks and others are placed with
good rating financial institutions.
Management does not expect any
loss from non-performance of these
banks.

As at 31st December 2010, the
Group has provided a financial
guarantee of approximately HK$43.9
million, of which 50%
amount is secured by pledged

of utilised

deposit of the borrower, the
maximum exposure to credit risk of
such guarantee was approximately
HK$21.9 million (31st December
2009: HK$29.2 million).
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3.

Notes to the Financial Statemer

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(b)

()

Credit and counterparty risk (cont’d)
In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue
trade and other receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash
and availability of funding from an
adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. Management maintains
rolling forecast of the Group’s liquidity
reserves which comprises undrawn
banking facilities and cash and
cash equivalents, on the basis of
expected cash flows. The disposal
of investment properties in Hong
Kong and Mainland China in 2010
has enhanced the Group’s ability to
serve its financial obligations as they
fall due and reduced the level of bank
borrowings.

3.

. BIWRME

MERREEE (R)
3.1 HREMEE ()
b) EFERXZTER(E)

©

RBEERRREERK  AEEEE
BEZK—HAAEAEHITEER
B EEFELREMEITIEE - AR
RERBEE R EBRRT 2E S
N ELAD FEMCGERIR SN - AEREE
S RERE 5 M EMERRIRZ
AT E &R - ARER B AR D 25
fEH B SURERR - BLLME - AR
RAEER/AKEZEERRE KRR
B - ARBYEBBEEF ZEER
2 BRARRESHMEZEHTF IR
BFE -

REBET/ER

BEORBDECAREEBRBRTTR
HWRE MNAEERE SBERE TN
ARER - BEEEARIEARERS
MREE R - BRERKE
BEFHRELRRE MRS FEYNHE
AEER - BER T -TFHEM
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3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(©

Liquidity risk (cont’d)

For the seamless steel pipes
segment, since acquisition, the
pbank borrowings and trade and
other payables of Kiyofo have been
increasing; the total balance at the
end of 2010 has increased by 39%
over prior year. As at 31 December
2010, Kiyofo’'s bank borrowings
represented 61% of the Group’s total.
It places considerable strain on the
Group’s internal resources, the Group
intends to consider the disposal of
such segment in future should the
opportunity arise.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities that will be settled
into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

3. MERREER)

3.1 HREREE(E)
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3.

Financial risk management (cont’d) 3.

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(©

Liquidity risk (cont’d)

At 31st December RZZ—ZF
2010 +ZA=1+-H

Group *5E

Trade and other B 5 RHEAM
payables FERFE

Amount due to a FEN—REE

related company
Amount due to a
non-controlling
shareholder
Borrowings
Interest payments
on borrowings
(note (i)
Financial guarantee
contract (note (i)

Company

Other payables

Amounts due to
subsidiaries

AFHR
Rt~ 3pHEblE
BRHE

fig
EEZHE
SR (HEE ()

HBRREN
(PEE)

Notes to the Financial Statements

 BERME

MERREEE (&)

3.1 HREREE(E)
© RBEZEE (&)

Less than Between 1 Between 2

1 year
—FUR
HK$’000

TRT

and 2 years
—FERF
HK$’000
FET

and 5 years
MEELF
HK$’000
T

Over 5 years
EFENE
HK$’000

THET

142,837 - - -

876 - - -

17 - - -
174,042 - - -

4,750

21,939 - - -

8,148 - - -

99,978 - - -
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3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

Liquidity risk (cont’d)

At 31st December ~ RZZEZNE
2009 +-ZA=+—H

Group 350

Trade and other B 5 RHEM
payables eI

Amount due to a FEN—REE
related company UNGIEQE]

Amount due to a
non-controlling
shareholder

Loan from a
shareholder

Borrowings

Interest payments on

borrowings, loan

from a shareholder
and amount due to
a related company

(note (i)
Financial guarantee
contract (note (ii))

Company

Other payables

Amounts due to
subsidiaries

Loan from a
shareholder

Interest payments
on loan from a
shareholder (note)

FER—fr IR
RRFR

BERER

EE

B8 RERER
RER—FA@E
ARIFEZFE
FA (B3 ()

HBEREN
(IEE )

VN

At MR

FERHE
REFE

RRE

S

BRE:
i)\
G

K
X
)

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

3. MERREEGR)

31 HEREBER (&)
© IEEEZEE(E)
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Qver 5 years
—EPR —FERE MEERF RELAE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT
95,691 - - -
22,869 - - -

133 - - -
54,360 - -

238,151 6,586 19,758 13,629
18,375 2,414 4,667 959
29,157

1,200 - - -

105,176 - - -
54,360 - - -
10,582 - - -




3.

Notes to the Financial Statement:

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c)  Liquidity risk (cont’d)
Note:

(i) The interest payments on
borrowings, loan from a shareholder
and amount due to a related
company are calculated on the
respective amounts held as at 31st
December 2009 and 2010 without
taking into account of any future
change in market interest rate.
Floating-rate interest is estimated
using applicable interest rates at
31st December 2009 and 2010
respectively.

(i) The amount represents the
maximum exposure of cash outflow
under the financial guarantee
contract.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debit.

3.

. PBHmRME

MERREEE (R)

3.1 HREMEE ()
© FBELERE
G

) BE BREFREN-—RBER
AFEZHN BN IRE_FTN
FR-E-ZF+_A=+—RH#
BzYReBEAE  WEFRARK
ERmSHE 28 - R_FTN
FR-_F-FF+-_F=+—H"
B 5 BEAMNSMEHEBHE

(i) ZEBRRMBEREHTZER
Rendmag -

32 BEXRERER
AEBEEREANB N AREBARERLS
B ARRBIRIE 8w /& H A F 25
HEALTRENE  AREFRIFHER
RIBARIE B ARIA ©

REFIAEEARE > AEEARAER
BRERIRN S - RARRELEAR - #17
IS EEER D ET -

—Z—-THEFH Annual Report 2010 97



98

3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management (cont’d)

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
debt divided by total equity.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain a
solid capital base to support the operations
and development of its business in the long
term. Management considers a gearing
ratio as measured by total debt to total
equity of not more than 100% as solid and
reasonable. The table below analyses the
Group’s capital structure at 31st December
2009 and 2010 as follows:

Total debts BT
Total equity HarEay
Gearing ratio BEBEALE

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

3.

MERREEE (R)

32 EBEFXmEmEE(E)

HEMRAZE-H AEENEEABLE
EREREANERE - BERBHRRE
TEHRERRR LA KRR S o

AEBZREEAFBRENESER - U
IRAEERANESZERERE -E12
BRAREBHBERINEERTE LS
B RERI00% A T BRERESHE
TRAXNEER=ZZTNER=_T—ZTF
TZA=+—BEAREBZHIT :

2010 2009
—e-®% | —TThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
174,042 361,454
275,293 448,143
63% 81%




3.

Notes to the Financial Statemer

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation
The carrying value of trade and other
receivables less provision for impairment,
trade and other payables, amount due to a
related company and amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities of the Group are
discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

Management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values for the
Group’s property, plant and equipment
commencing from the date the assets are
placed into productive use. The estimated
useful lives reflect the director’s estimate of
the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment.

3.

. BIWRME

MERREEE (R)

3.3 AAREME
B 5 MEMEEHERRERE  BEHK
Hip A RIE - BN —REERRREAR
AN — iz FE 4% 1) 1 PR 3R TR 2 R T B AR
FEZRAERE -

PR &t {h &t R PR

ApARAEERIEMRR(BREAREMNF
EHZ AR TR ERERMBO G R A
B - UTREEARREBAKEEERAEBLZ
FREEAFHEARB M RRRZA® °

@ W% BERREBEZTAFH

AEBEZME  BEMRBEZATBFHR
RHREBEEHEREETE HEERALE
Z AR E - R ERFHRRES
RZBEAZ G AEEAEKED
X BB R&E BT A ERB®ER

Flas o
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4.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability
and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If
the financial conditions of customers of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be
required.

Provision for inventories

The management of the Group reviews
the marketability of inventory items at each
balance sheet date, and makes allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable
for sale. The management estimates the
net realisable value for inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group
carries out an inventory review on a
product-by-product basis at each balance
sheet date and makes provision for
obsolete items.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

4.

PRER S AT & R FIER (48)
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4.

Notes to the Financial Stateme

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of assets

Non-financial assets including goodwill are
reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. The Group tests
at least annually whether goodwill or
assets that have indefinite useful lives have
suffered any impairment, in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note
2(h). The recoverable amounts of assets
or CGUs have been principally determined
based on value in use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates,
details are set out in Notes 14, 15 and
16. Details of events and changes in
circumstances indicating that the carrying
amounts of the assets exceed recoverable
amounts are set out in Note 34jii).

Employee benefits — share based
payments

The determination of the fair value of the
share options granted requires estimates
in determining the expected volatility of
the share price, the dividends expected
on the shares, the risk-free interest rate
for the life of the option and the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable as stated in Note 8. Where the
outcome of the number of options that are
exercisable is different, such difference will
impact the consolidated income statement
in the subsequent remaining vesting period
of the relevant share options.

4.

Bt 7 3R 7R Bfd &

PRER S AT & R FIER (48)

(d)

(e)

EERE

HNEMBEE(REEE)  E63HY
BB EETNEEERN A WE S
W EARREETRS - AEBETHIRE
PRI EE 2(n) 2 B FTHUER - ¥BS0RE
BEFERFHCEESFRLET N
AU BEERGHRRE EEXEE
ReBuzrf BB ZREFERAER
ATE - WETEEZERAE - FBERME
14 - 15 R 16 AL ER o MI=E34(i) AFF5 B 78
EHRBERNERREEZ RABEBRBE
AU E &% o

BEEF - R BERBTK

EERNBREND A ERMG T RERD
EVRBIIEE - fEET D IRSEOBRE - BB
RITE I AR A & R IR A TATER
EREHE FRRIINMHES © HEFRA T
TENBERERBAMRE  ZE=8EE
RBREERNGNEBAERHRE K
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Segment information

The Group determines its operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the board of
directors (the “Board”) that are used to make
strategic decisions. The Board assesses the
performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Company.

The Group has three reportable segments, which
are trading of pipes and fittings, manufacturing
and sale of seamless steel pipes and investment
in properties for rental income. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services. The accounting
policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in the basis of preparation
and accounting policies. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group’s
reportable segments.

Trading of pipes and fittings includes wholesale
and retail operations in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Macau.

Seamless steel pipes segment is contributed
by a subsidiary of the Group, Kiyofo, which
manufactures and sells seamless steel pipes in
Mainland China.

Investment in properties for rental income
includes properties held in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. As all the investment properties
have been disposed during the year, the results
related to investment in properties have been
presented under discontinued operation in 2010
(Note 24).

The segment information for the year ended 31st
December 2010 and 2009 are as follows :

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE
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5.

Segment information (cont’d)

Revenue

QOperating profit/(loss)
before interest

Interest income

Interest expense

Profit/{loss) before income tax
Tax (expense)/credit

Profit/{loss) for the year
Non-controling interests

Profit/loss) before corporate
overhead attributable
to equity holders

Operating profit/{loss) before
interest includes:
Depreciation and amortisation
Provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables
Write-back of provision for
impairment of inventories
Impairment loss on land
use rights
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss on goodwil

Capital expenditure

JA

fEEi/ (BR)
(RatHlg)
HEAA
e

HaER/(B8)
WEH) /B4

FRER/(BR)
PRELLT 5

RARRAZRE
FBAEL
&/ (BR)

et/ (B8)

(Rathlg) &t

TEREH
25 RAMELR
LHERR
FEHEDS

HiERE
LBERR
0z BER
RECHERR
BEZHERR

ARHX

Notes to the Financial Statements

_ EBEmEME

5. SWEHGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2010
BE_B-BEt-A=t-ALER

Reportable segments
EBNAE
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
RREERE RIEBERK
Trading of Inter- Inter- Total
pipesand  Seamless  segment Investment  segment reportable
fittings  steelpipes  revenue  Sub-total properties  revenue  Sub-total  segments
BEREH LB BERE 428
R5  EMRE WML Mt REME  MEA it it
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tién Fién Fién Fién Fién Tién Fién Tién
452,299 131,334 (67,154) 516,479 1,902 (386) 1,516 517,995
21,194 (136,787) 386 (115207) (24,293) (386) (24,679 (139,886
ARl 48 - 259 2 - 2 261
(2,736) (6,169) - (8,905) (3,054) - (3,054) (11,959)
18,669 (142,908) 386 (123,859) (27,345) (386) (7,781)  (151,584)
(3,434) 9,072 - 5,638 29 - 29 5,667
15285 (133,836) 386 (118,215) (27,316) (386) (7,702)  (145917)
- 44314 - 44314 - - - 44314
15,235 (89,522) 386 (73,901) (27,316) (386) (27,702)  (101,603)
1,988 9,727 - 1,715 692 - 692 12,407
5,866 2 - 5,886 - - - 5,886
4,736 - - 4,736 - - - 4,736
- 241 - 241 - - - 241
- 98,900 - 98,900 - - - 98,900
- 23,050 - 23,050 - - - 23,050
1,226 1,584 - 2810 9 - 9 2,819
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5.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

Segment information (cont’d)

Revenue

QOperating (loss)/profit
hefore interest

Interest income

Interest expense

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Tax credt

(Loss)/proftt for the year
Non-controling interests

(Loss)/profit before corporate
overhead attributable to
equity holders

Operating (loss)/profit before
interest includes:
Depreciation and amortisation
Provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables
Provision for impairment
of inventories

Capital expenditure

BA

2% (Bi) /&7
(RatHg)

HEMA

e

Hiai (i) /&7
HEKR

FE(BR)/ &7
AL

RARRAZRGE
FBAEl
(BR)/ 8

% (i) /&7

(Rathlg) &t

TEREH

BB REMENHK
RiERH

REHERRE

AR

SEEH(])

Forthe year ended 31st December 2009
HE_TRNE+CA=T-AIEE

Reportable segments
e
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
HESERH RIFEERE
Trading of Inter- Inter- Total
pipesand  Seamless segment Investment ~ segment reportable
fitings ~~ steel pipes revenue  Sub-total  properties revenue  Sub-totl  segments
REREH SENE BENE 2B
8%  E8dE LN Nt RENE LN Nt @it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
THL Thr ThL T ThL Thr ThL Thr
425,834 61,162 (34978 452,018 2,657 (890) 1,767 453,785
(12,918 1,635 890 (10,493) (1,717) (890) (2,607) (13,100)
57 60 - "7 2 - 2 119
(2,363 (1,082 - (3445) (3812) - (3812 (7,257)
(15,224) 513 890 (13,821) (5,527) (890) (6417) (20,238)
2,072 149 - 2,201 1,362 = 1,362 3,583
(13,152) 662 890 (11,600) (4,165) (890) (6,055) (16,655)
= (265) = (265) = = = (269)
(13,152) 397 890 (11,869) (4,165) (890) (5,065) (16,920)
1,992 1,563 = 3,505 745 - 745 4,300
8,793 = = 8,793 = = = 8,793
13,290 - - 13290 - - - 13290
613 3421 - 4,034 3 - 3 4,087




Notes to the Financial Statement:
- BRI

5. Segment information (cont’d) 5. #¥FEHGE)
For the year ended
31st December
BE+_A=1+—HLEE
2010 2009
—Z—ZF —EENEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
BiEE THT FHIT
Reconciliation of loss before ARIERAIARAR]
corporate overhead attributable &S AL EE
to the equity holders of the P& I =stE vk )
Company and discontinued
operation
Continuing operations: FAEEERT :
Loss before corporate NElBAAZ
overhead for reportable EWMPHNF
segments (73,901) (11,865)
Administrative expenses (note) TERER (Fiz) (27,927) (11,195)
Depreciation e (154) (137)
Interest income FLEWA 46 -
Interest expense FEXZ N (5,978) (5,847)
Fair value gains on financial assets ~ 1ZA R BB BIEZHIED
at fair value through profit or loss WS EE 2 A ElE - 5,728
(107,914) (23,316)
Discontinued operation: AU BB
Reportable segment EmMDEE/NET (27,702) (5,055)
After-tax gain on disposal HENE A RS
of subsidiaries (Fi1g) 24(b) 12,847 =
Provision for impairment of H At pE 2 R E R
other receivables - (11,291)
(14,855) (16,346)
Loss attributable to the equity RARREREE A
holders of the Company FE{L &R (122,769) (39,662)
Note: The amounts mainly represent administrative Mis - ZEREIERRDFEARINALED TR EME

expenses at corporate level and other TEEITEER °
businesses not categorised as operating

segments.
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5. Segment information (cont’d)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st n=

December 2010 and 2009 are as follows :

As at 31st December 2010
Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilties

As at 31st December 2009
Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Note: The balances represent assets and liabilities of
corporate and other businesses not categorised
as operating segments, which principally
include cash and cash equivalents and accrued

R-F-FE+-A=1-H
RY2BRNHEEE

BY2HNNEAE

R-FENFT-A=1-H
TERNNBEE

B
=
ED

AY2BNNRAE

5. SWEHGE)

expenses (2009: cash and cash equivalents,
amount due to a related company and loan from

a shareholder).

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

—ZEFERZBTFNFT_A=T—HZE
i‘%éﬁé S3=Nv I
Reportable segments
EEnAE
Trading of Total Corporate
pipes and Seamless reportable and others
fittings steel pipes segments (note) Total
BREREH EgSE  LTREM
H5 EENE it (Mit) #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TF#T TExT TET T#T TR
402,843 181,195 584,038 14,317 598,355
132,882 181,195 314,077 8,985 323,062
Reportable segments
2RO E
Trading of Total  Corporate
pipesand  Seamless  Investment  reportable  and others
fittings ~ steelpipes  properties  segments (note) Total
REREH 2EPR  RAERAM
85  ERIE  REDE 5t (Fitst) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAL THx TAT TAT
325,782 285,653 304,436 915,871 8,917 924,783
149,630 145,391 98,897 393,918 82,727 476,645
MiEE  ZE AR ARLARIIALES HHE M ERH
BERAE FTEZECRRERRSEEY RET
ER(ZZTNF : RekBE25EY - EHH

BRARFEERRER) -




5. Segment information (cont’d) 5. SEEHE(E)

Geographical information thE D EER
The Group’s revenue from external customers by ZNEE B [E D FER R BINRE R R A ¢

geographical location are detailed below:

Revenue
A
For the year ended
31st December

BE+-A=1+—HL*EE

Restated

KE5|

2010 2009

=25 —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Hong Kong B8 378,050 382,761

Mainland China R A 133,740 63,165

Others EAfth 4,689 6,092

Continuing operations B LB ET 516,479 452,018

Discontinued operation 4R\ IB TS 1,516 1,767

517,995 453,785

The Group’s non-current assets (excluding AEFIRMWESENIERESEE (TR EMEE
financial assets and deferred tax assets) by ENMEEREEE)

geographical location are detailed below:

2010 2009

—E-ZF T NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAIT

Hong Kong BB 2,576 2,835

Mainland China R i 35,974 354,161

Others HAftb 21 42

38,571 357,038
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6. Other gains, net 6. EHgR R

Restated
K E5
2010 2009
—Z-ZF T hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHIT
Financial assets at fair value RAREERER

through profit or loss HIRRE B 75 &

— fair value gains —AnERE - 5,728
Net exchange gains/(losses) BE M e (E518 ) F8 562 (194)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEKR

plant and equipment Kt B1ERFEE (10) -

552 5,634
7. Expenses by nature 7. FAXHHE
Operating loss is arrived at after charging/ EEBINE, GIA) THIEB®RES -
(crediting):
Restated
e
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FHIT
Cost of inventories sold BEHEZFERAR 413,335 361,908
Auditor’s remuneration ZERRTEN & 1,288 1,208
Depreciation of property, Y% - BREMEREITE

plant and equipment 11,211 3,584
Amortisation of land use rights I b {sh A R A 8 658 108
Employee benefit expenses BTIREMNAZ (BE

(including directors’ EEMe (FizEs))

emoluments (Note 8)) 56,309 43,005
Operating lease on land T RAEFLCETALY

and buildings 15,865 14,909
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 R E At FEUGRIE

and other receivables, net YRR e 5,886 8,793
(Write-back of provision)/provision 17 & F{E (E1#) /B F 58

for impairment of inventories, net (4,736) 13,290
Other expenses HEmAx 36,082 26,844

535,898 473,649

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE
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_ EBmEME W

7. Expenses by nature (cont’d) 7. BAXME(E)
Restated
KE7|
2010 2009
—Z-ZF T hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHIT
Representing: (A
Cost of sales SHER AR 425,836 381,077
Selling and distribution costs SHEE K 5 SHAK AR 12,807 12,102
General and administrative —MRITEE R
expenses 97,255 80,470
535,898 473,649
8. Employee benefit expenses 8. [EERTAX(BREEE#H<)
(including directors’ emoluments)
Restated
B
2010 2009
—Z—ZF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHIT
Wages and salaries ITERFE 49,705 40,810
Pension costs — defined BRIRE KA —
contribution plans TE R G & 1,500 1,477
Share based payment (note) LARGAD B EERE 2 5 3R (B 5E) 5,104 718
56,309 43,005
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Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)

EREFRAZ(BEESHE) (W)

Note: st -
Details of share options are as follows: BB -
Number of share options
MRENE

Exercise Price 1st January Granted and 31st December

Grantor Date of grant HK$ 2010 accepted Exercised Lapsed 2010
fTE®| —Z-Zf k-2 23

J|HA R A EIT —A—0 CERffER BiTfE GES: +ZA=+-H
The Company 3rd December 2009 0.071 592,000,000 - - (36,400,000) 555,600,000
KAF “TEAFT-AZA
The Company 5th May 2010 0.083 - 16,000,000 - - 16,000,000
ARF —T-T5RAAA
Total Ft 592,000,000 16,000,000 - (36,400,000) 571,600,000

The share options are divided into 2 tranches with
exercise price of HK$0.071 and HK$0.083 respectively
and have option period from 3rd December 2009
to 2nd December 2019 (both days inclusive) and
5th May 2010 to 4th May 2020 (both days inclusive)
respectively. Details of the exercisable periods are set
out in Note 25.

The estimated fair value of share options granted is
based on the Binomial model. The significant inputs into
the models are as follows:

RERRHE D BIIRTT(E(E 0.071 78 7T 1 0.083 7 o 20 M L 1%
i ZEERESRS N ER="STNF+=_A=HZ
“E-NF+_A-H(EREEEMB) KA E—ZF
AARRE-_Z-_ZFHANA (BREEEMB) ° 17/

HIRFF BRI 25 51 -

ERHBRENE AR ERE B GERAE -
FZEAFANEZZL2H0T ¢

The Company b 3/
5th May 2010 3rd December 2009
Date of grant A —Z—-ZfHAERA —EThFTA=H
Exercise price 1IfEE HK$0.083 HK$0.071
Expected volatility SEE Y] 55% 54%
Option life FERR iR ER 10 years 10 years
10 10 F
Annual risk free interest rate 2 R R & 2.86% 2.16%
Dividend yield ER R 3.10% 3.58%
Fair value NiE HK$0.026 ~ HK$0.038 HK$0.021 ~ HK$0.031

The expected volatility measured at the standard
deviation is based on the historical data of the weekly
share price movement of comparable companies of the
Company.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE
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8.

Employee benefit expenses

(including directors’ emoluments)

(cont’d)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of each Director for the
year ended 31st December 2010 and 2009

is set out below:

Name of Director

Lai Guanglin (note (i)

Lai Fulin (note (i)

Yu Ben Ansheng (note (i)
Sam Ming Choy (note (iv))

U Kean Seng (note (i)

Zhao Yue (note (v))

Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
(note (i)

Wu Xiuru (note (vi))

Chen Wei Wen (note (vi))

Zia Samuel (note (viii)

Lau Kwok Ting (note (ix))

Cai Shangwu (note (x))

j £33

Lai Guanglin (Fifz£ ()
iR ()
AR (it (i)
Sam Ming Choy
(BE ()

REEK (Bt ()

i (st )
EUSHGE)

BEE (Vi)
BRI 3T (Pt (vi)

REM(

EX(
A (P i)

E(

(

=

285 (MizE (x)
2 (i)

Notes to the Financial Statement

S Ji’%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&'

8. ERRFAX(BEESEME) (W)

(@ E=#Me
EEENBE_ZTZEFRZTETNF+A
=q— EIJJ:EFE’J@H%%WJ&DT

For the year ended 31st December 2010
BE_Z-ZE+°A=+-HLEE
Group’s

Salaries contributions Share

and other Discretionary to retirement based
Fees benefits bonus scheme  payments Total

FREH

HeR Bkl DRRA
e  HfiEH | B8R <HEH  EROAR #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TF#L TFHIT TR THL TET
2,000 - - - - 2,000
- 1,000 % 12 658 1,764
- 2,000 53 12 - 2,065
- 1,495 17 76 658 2,246
200 - - - 395 595
100 - - - 104 204
200 - - - 132 332
150 - - - 34 184
104 - - - 133 27
67 - - - - 67
60 - - - 34 9%
15 - - - - 15
2,896 4,495 164 100 2,148 9,803
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3 ::#_7} g a5

8. Employee benefit expenses 8. EARFAXZ(BREEM<) (&)
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (cont’d) (@ E=M< (&)

For the year ended 31st December 2009
HE-TRAET-A=H-ALER

Group's
Salaries contributions Share
and other to retirement based
Fees benefits scheme payments Total
FEEY
FER R E WA &
e HiniE A s G20 N st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of Director BEY TR TET TAT TET TR
Lai Guanglin (note () Lai Guanglin (FfzE () 85 - - - 85
Lai Fulin (note (i) FETRRA (PiT3E () = 320 3 75 398
Yu Ben Ansheng (note (i) &% 4 (B & (i) - 1,269 8 - 1,277
Cai Shangwu (note () i (R x) 85 - - - 85
U Kean Seng (note (i) REERK (FIEE() 85 - - 45 130
Zhao Yue (note (v)) (W) 85 = = 45 130
Sam Ming Choy (note (i) ~ Sam Ming Choy (FfizE (iv)) 84 406 4 75 569
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson — EbAfE (FifzE ()

(note (i) 153 - - 15 168
Lau Kwok Ting (note ()~ ZIBE5 (Bit&E () 128 - - 15 143
Wu Xiuru (note (vi) RE# (MFE W) 55 = = 15 70
Wing Man Yi (note (xi) e E)) 29 268 2 - 299
Lam Cheung Shing, MR (B3 (xi)

Richard (note (xi)) 29 718 2 - 749
Chan Wing Yuen, Hubert  BRokiR (BiH3E (x)

(note (xi)) 29 718 2 - 749
Zhu Yongjun (note (xi) REE (MizEx) 29 479 2 - 510
Lui Tin Nang (note (xi) ErAUEL) 29 = = = 29
KoMing Tung, Edward ~ EBRR (HiE (x)

(note (xi)) 29 - - - 29
Ho Yiu Yue, Louis (note (xi) {al#% (BisE (xi) 29 - - - 29

963 4,178 23 285 5,449
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8.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)

(cont’d)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (cont’d)

Notes:
()

(i)
(i

(iv)

(vii)

(vii)

()

(xi)

Appointed on 23rd February 2009.
Appointed on 1st October 2009.
Appointed on 13th May 2009.

Appointed as independent non-executive
director on 23rd February 2009 and re-
designated as executive director on 15th

September 2009.

Appointed on 23rd February 2009 and
resigned on 20th January 2011.

Appointed on 19th August 2009 and
resigned on 20th January 2011.

Appointed on 21st April 2010.

Appointed on 21st July 2010 and resigned
on 20th January 2011.

Appointed on 23rd February 2009 and
retired on 26th May 2010.

Appointed on 23rd February 2009 and
resigned on 1st May 2010.

Resigned on 23rd February 2009.

. BIRBEARME

EREFRAZ(BEESHE) (W)

EEME (F)

BT -

()

(i)
(i
(iv)

(V)

(vii)

(vil)

(x1)

REBENF A +=HEEE-
RZZTNE+A—BEE(E-
R-ZThERA+=BEZE -
REBENF A= +=BHRERBILIE

WITES  UN—_"TZNFNAA+HAH
ERBITESE -

R-TTNFE-_A-+=BEZERN=
Z——F—FZTHBHE

R-ZENFN\ATNRREERA-T
—— & — A= ARHE -

RZE—TFOA-T—HEZE-

R-E—ZTFLtA -+ HEZERR=
T——F—HF -+ HBHE-

=

\—EERNE-_A-+=AEZEERR=
TERA - +/NBRET -

Al

=

ERNF AT =HEZERRC
TERA—BHEHE -

A

RZZETNF_A=-+=HEH{E-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8.

Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (cont’d)

8.

EREFRAZ(BEESHE) (W)

@ E=ME(E)

The emoluments of the directors fell within E=EMES N TATAR -
the following bands:
2010 2009
—E—ZTF ZZETNEF
Nil — HK$1,000,000 4 — 1,000,000/ 7T 8 16
HK$1,000,001 — 1,000,001 BT -
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000 87T - 1
HK$1,500,001 — 1,500,001 /&7 —
HK$2,000,000 2,000,000 7T 2 =
HK$2,000,001 — 2,000,001 7T -
HK$2,500,000 2,500,000 7T 2 -
12 17

N FEIEITE S 2 M€ 847,000 7T

—ZTTAEF : 552,000/870)  FFIEATT
EE 2,866,000/ ( —ZZTNE ¢
345,000787T) °

Emoluments paid to independent
non-executive directors amounted to
HK$847,000 (2009: HK$552,000).
Emoluments paid to non-executive
directors amounted to HK$2,866,000
(2009: HK$345,000).
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8.

Notes to the Financial Statement:

Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group for the year
include four (2009: one) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emolument paid to

. PBHmRME

EREFRAZ(BEESHE) (W)

(b)

hfuskEHAL

RER AEBRAMNESH AT B2ENM
—TThE: M EF EFSORE
XE2HMDITRE - RZZE—FFN - ¢

NTFHET U (ZZTZNF - Ou) AT 2
BT

the remaining one (2009: four) individual in
2010 was as follows:

2010 2009
—Z—-ZF T hEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FHET
Salaries and other short-  EZARFH 4 K E A

term employee benefits RHEEEEF 1,495 6,134
Discretionary bonus BIEIEAT 115 =

Pension costs — defined  RIREHA — EREHETE
contribution plans 75 48
Share based payments AR 1 B EREE 1,190 50
2,875 6,232

—B(ZTENF  OR)REHFALZH
BT 5 g E -

The emolument of the one (2009: four)
individual fell within the following bands:

2010 2009
—g-®% | —TThF
HK$1,000,001 - 1,000,001 & 7T —
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 — 1,500,001 & 7T -
HK$2,000,000 2,000,000 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 - 2,000,001 /&7 —
HK$2,500,000 2,500,000 /87T - 1
HK$2,500,001 - 2,500,001 7T -
HK$3,000,000 3,000,000787C 1 =
1 4
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9. Finance costs, net

Bank interest income

Interest expense on loan
from a shareholder

Interest expense on amount
due to a related company

Interest expense on bank
borrowings wholly repayable
within five years

10. Tax credit

Current taxation:
Hong Kong profits tax
Overseas tax
Qver-provision in prior years

Total current tax

Deferred taxation (Note 28):
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Total deferred tax

Tax credit

9. MEBRASRE

RITABHA
PRREFF B S

e —ZREIE A RIFIRN B 2 i

BRNAFATREEZ
RITEEZHE X

10. RIAESR

BIEATRIR
BRMEHR
MBMRIR
ARTEE 218
BT IR AR
EAERA (HFE28) ¢
U ERCES REME

BT IRAREE

HIRE R

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

Restated

K&

2010 2009
—Z-ZF T hEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FA&T
(305) (117)
4,927 5,362
1,051 485
8,905 3,445
14,578 9,175
Restated

EET

2010 2009
—2—-25F —EThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FATT
(1,229) (725)
(45) (80)

98 427
(1,176) (878)
6,814 2,599
6,814 2,599

5,638 2,221




Notes to the Financial Statement:

10. Tax credit (cont’d)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the year. The rate applicable
for income tax in Mainland China is 25% (2009:
25%) for the year ended 31st December 2010.

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would

. PBHmERME

10. RIAESR (#8)

FRBMERIAF ARG ERTENIRT X 16.5%

—ETNF 165%) R - BE_T—FF
TZA=+—H1t - PEAMASHRIZRER
5% (ZFFNE : 25%) 518 -

AEBEEABAEE 2 HAX HERERBER
MEREMTEZIERHBZZRMT

arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate is as
follows:

Restated
K&
2010 2009
—e-8F | C—TThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHT
Loss before income tax TR EE (157,866) (25,272)
Tax calculated at tax rate #216.5% (ZZZNF : 16.5%)
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) MEGTE 2 I8 (26,048) (4,169)
Effect of different tax rates HEMBERTRABE 272
in other countries (12,575) (784)
Utilisation of previously R S RIARTERR 2 L5 518
unrecognised tax loss (13) -
Unrecognised tax losses RIERFIBEE 7,970 3,592
Tax effect of income not R GRT 2 WA 2 THIE
subject to taxation (1,089) (438)
Tax effect of expenses not DRAIHFL 2 2 2 FiIE
deductible for taxation
purposes 30,816 5
Reversal of deferred tax JRELZ BT E B ERIEERIA
recognised in prior years (4,601) -
Over-provision of current ZBIFEE Z R EAR IR
tax in prior years (98) (427)
Tax credit TRIEHE (5,638) (2,221)
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10.

11.

12.

Tax credit (cont’d) 10. IRIGESR (§8)
For the year ended 31st December 2010, the BE_Z—ZF+_A=1+—RHIFE ' NEF
weighted average applicable tax rate was 24.5% HEAKREA24.5% (ZEZTNE : 19.6%) °
(2009:19.6%).
Loss attributable to equity holders 11. BRESEAEGER
The loss attributable to equity holders of the RARBIHERERARIE 2 ANARRERE A
Company is dealt with in the financial statements FE 165 5 18 /5 #9182,685,000/8 L ( —EZE L4 ¢
of the Company to the extent of approximately 23,218,0007&7T) °
HK$182,685,000 (2009: HK$23,218,000).
Loss per share 12. BERER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per TR ESREREERESHEEIRESF
share is based on the loss attributable to equity AR A (S B 1B R I 2 InfE - 19 BL EX
holders and weighted average number of shares (BEETURAR) :
with adjustments where applicable as follows:
2010 2009
—Z—ZF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FBT
Loss attributable to equity BEEBERLZ
holders from continuing R R FE(EE 1R
operations 107,914 23,316
Loss attributable to equity BILEEERZ
holders from discontinued & R FE AL B 18
operation 14,855 16,346
Loss attributable to equity STEERENSE
holders for the purpose R FE(E BB
of basic loss per share 122,769 39,662
Thousand Thousand
Number of shares ;3770 A= | Th T
Weighted average number STEOREREE 2 EERH
of ordinary shares for Z INFEFEARER
the purpose of basic
loss per share 13,332,700 12,644,481

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE




12.

13.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Loss per share (cont’d)

The share options have no potential dilutive effect
on basic loss per share for 2009 and 2010.

Dividend

At the Board meeting held on 28th March 2011,
the Board did not recommend a final dividend for
the year ended 31st December 2010 (2009: nil).

12.

13.

_# ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ‘iﬂ:_

BRER (])

—EENFR T -TFBEREHERERNER
BEBCHEYE -

BB

R-ZE—ZTF=_A-_+N\HETNEESSZ
t EEeTERREEE_T & +_A
=+—BLEFEZRBARE(ZZTNF &) -

—ZE—FHFFH Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Financial Statements

= }.EJJ BHMRMEE

14. Property, plant and equipment 14. 9% - BERERH
Group REH
Plant, Office
machinery furniture,
and  Leasehold fixtures and Office ~ Computer Motor
Buildings  equipment improvements fittings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles Total
WOE

BE-RE  ERMR GERE hag
% Bif 3 Rixfi BiE  EERE AE #it
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Firn Tirn Fin Fin Fin T Fin Fin

Cost ;%3

At 1st January 2010 W=2-%5-A-A 7588 39725 9,517 1,360 312 7,660 8444 142,841
Exchange differences EiER 2,841 1,342 27 % 8 8 213 4,464
Addltions AE 906 219 236 59 6 82 1,555 3,063
Disposals iH & - (321) - - (78) - (25) (424)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 32(c)  HEMBAA (HfzE32(0) - - - ] - O @251) (429

At 31st December 2010 RZZ-SETZA=T-B| 79510 40,965 9,780 1,441 248 ALY 5036 145,681

Accumulated depreciation ARIEREESR
and impairment losses

At 1st January 2010 R=Z-Z£-f-H 702 4,885 7,849 41 200 6,353 3600 24356
Exchange differences EREE 1,886 874 8 13 7 6 126 2,920
Charge for the year TEERE 4318 4,468 450 101 40 632 1804 11,903
Disposals i - - - - (63) - ® @)
Impaiment losses (Note 34 (i) IR (FE 34 i) 69,144 27,953 - 163 2 147 1472 98,000
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 32(c)  (HEMBAR (Mf32() - - - (1) - ) (434  (243%)

At 315t December 2010 RIE-SFL-A=F-H| 76050 38,180 8,307 1,113 205 7137 4580 135572

Net book value EEBE

At 31st December 2010 R-Z-ZE+-A=t-H| 350 2,785 1473 328 48 604 1235 10,109
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 BIBmEMEE

amounts of approximately HK$3,520,000 (2009:
HK$73,084,000) have been pledged for bank
borrowings (Note 27).

The carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment of the seamless steel pipes business
have been reduced to their recoverable amounts
and impairment losses of HK$98,900,000 are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
The recoverable amounts are determined based
on value in use calculations. The key assumptions
used in value in use calculations are set out in
Note 16. Details are set out in Note 34(jii).

14. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d) 14. Y% - BEREE (&)
Group (cont’d) REE (1)
Plant, Office
machinery fumiture,
and  Leasehold fitures and Office  Computer Motor
Buildings  equipment  improvements fitings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HAZ
BE-AE HEME  GA-%EE NS
g7 & £ Rk % BB E it
HKG000  HKS000  HKS000  HKG000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS000  HK§'000
Thn Tan TAn AT Tan Tan Tan TATL
Cost BE
A 1st January 2009 RZZENE-A-H - 6,958 9,493 1,086 257 7471 6551 31816
Exchange differences EiER 13 10 1 - - - B 30
Additions HE 1,046 1930 23 63 19 12 405 4,008
Acquision of a subsidiary (Note 34)  WEE-FWBLR(MESY 74164 30827 - 211 3% 177 1482 106,807
At 31st December 2009 RZZENET-A=T-H 7588  397% 9517 12360 312 7,660 8444 142841
Accumulated depreciation FRiTE
A 1st January 2009 RZZENE-A-H - 3741 7,199 628 165 5746 2546 2005
Exchange differences EiER - 1 - - - - 1 2
Charge for the year TEERE 702 1,143 650 119 3 607 1,073 43%9
At 31st December 2009 RZBENETZA=1-H 702 4885 7849 747 200 6,353 3620 2435
Net book value BERE
At 315t December 2009 RIESAET-A=T-B 75121 34840 1,668 613 112 1307 4824 118485
At 31st December 2010, buildings with carrying RZZE—ZTF+-A=+—H REEBEHNA

3,520,000/ 70 (== Z /L4 : 73,084,000/ 7T) 2
BFERRITEE (MiE27) m T AR o

MEMEEB2ME  BELRSBEBROERRE
HA[E W4 58 98,900,0008 7T 2B EBEE R
RAEWERANER - ARk SBERIEFEREER
HMEE - EREEFETHEEREIIEHAM
#7116 © FHIBHIEFA B EE 34(ii) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

14. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d) 14.

Company

Cost
At 1st January 2010
Additions

At 31st December 2010

Accumulated depreciation
At 1st January 2010
Charge for the year

At 31st December 2010

Net book value
At 31st December 2010

ABEWRMEE

R-Z-—TF+_A=+—H

BESE
R=Z-F5t-A=1-8

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

WX - BERxME ()

RAH
Office furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements fittings Total
HEME WAOBEM
R RER:E a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T T#T T#T
208 21 229
208 21 229
5 - 5
5 - 5
203 21 224




Notes to the Financial Statemen

15. Land use rights

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payment and their net
book values are analysed as follows:

In Mainland China, held on:

Leases of between NTF10ZE504F
10 to 50 years KIS
At 1st January n—H—H

Acquisition of

a subsidiary (Note 34)
Exchange differences
Impairment loss (Note 34 {iii))
Amortisation G5

(B95E34)
& =%

At 31st December

At 31st December 2010, land use rights
with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$26,896,000 (2009: HK$28,837,000) have
been pledged for bank borrowings (Note 27).

The carrying amount of land use rights of the
seamless steel pipes business has been reduced
to its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined based on value in use
calculations. The key assumptions used for value
in use calculations are set out in Note 16. Details
are set out in Note 34(ii). Impairment loss of
HK$2,471,000 recognised in the consolidated
income statement is allocated to land use rights
with reference to its fair market value.

R BER - I T HRE ¢

W —RHIEB AR

RIEEE (MI5E 34 (i)

R+=—A=+—8

 BEmRME

15. Lib{E A

B+ 308 P BRI 2 IR TR R E OR
RAEBEFEATMT :

2010 2009
—E—2F ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T
28,462 30,535
2010 2009
—e-BE | —TIAA
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
30,535 -

- 30,638

1,056 5
(2,471) -
(658) (108)
28,462 30,535

R-ZZE-—ZEF+_A=+—H0  REAELAR
26,896,000 7T (ZZZT L4 - 28,837,000/87T)
ZIiERED BRITEE (27 T UAE
o

fELENE X T  THEAERAEE R EE A O
WekE - RS ERRFERABENEMEE
FREEFERNEZERBINENHTT16 - 5715
P EHAMTEE 34(iii) © RERE Was R NRER Z T Hh{s
FRHEREEIEA2,471,0008 7T XFEEAAT
HEEMEL D °
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16. Goodwill

At 1st January Rn—H—H

Acquisition of W —KMIB AR
a subsidiary (Note 34) (FI7E34)

Exchange differences HEH =58

Impairment loss (Note 34 (iii))

At 31st December

Goodwill is related to the segment of
manufacturing and sale of seamless steel pipes in
Mainland China.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on value in use calculations, which have
been reviewed and confirmed by an independent
professional valuer. These calculations use pre-
tax cash flow projections based on financial
forecasts approved by management covering a
five-year period. Management determined the
financial forecasts based on past performance
and its expectations for market development.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rate
stated below.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

SBEESE (5T 34 (i)
R+—A=+—H

2010 2009
—2—-=5F —EThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ERT FHET
22,787 -

- 22,266

263 521
(23,050) -

- 22,787

HERARNPEAMEEREEEENE D
e

ZIRTEE B JWESBRIDREEAEEN
8 WA EELB Y X AEMEMNRER - &
LA REARMRESRERAEREDFHE 2
MBI ER R EEEE - EEEHYT
R ER D RIBBERBR LA S TSR RNY
EMETE - ReREBBOFHHEEGHFHERE
AT e



Notes to the Financial Statement

16. Goodwill (cont’d)

The key assumptions used in value in use
calculations are as follows:

Growth rate (note () R ()
Discount rate (note (ii)) PTI0 2 (B 3E (ii))

Notes:

(i) Weighted average growth rate is used to
extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast
period which does not exceed long-term average
growth rate for the industry.

(i) Pre-tax discount rate has been applied to the
cash flow projections. The discount rate used is
pre-tax and reflect specific risks related to the
Group.

After the acquisition, the market situation had
significantly deteriorated due to the imposition of
anti-dumping and anti-subsidy duties on imports
of steel pipes by the United States and European
Union that led to oversupply and intense
competition in Mainland China market. Also,
the unexpected surge in commodity prices (i.e.
cost of raw materials of the seamless steel pipes
segment) which has exacerbated the situation.
As a result, the performance of seamless steel
pipes segment for the year 2010 was well below
management expectation. Details are set out in
Note 34iii).

During the vyear, an impairment loss of
HK$23,050,000 is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

 BEmEME

16. B2 (&)

EREEFECEERRET

2010
—s-2%
%

1%
17.8%

0 MEFEERFARAEERSREBE TN
BT BB R BT S o

(i) BAFRREEARBESRERA - FIERAOTT
BRTFH AT R RRE A RE R E 2 RR -

RUREBIR - i 32 B K RO Bk B 2 O S i
RARHRAD R R AR - WS IBNEERIL -
BHHEBE P EREMSHMRESF - Ut
S B M ERRIEHIIME KNE £ (BB & 2
MO ERMERARN) REREEEE - Ft - B|4E
MEDHR T -—TFNRARBREEBNE
H o SBHIBHIFE 34 (i) ©

/|

F R - 23,050,00078 7T RERIRE R4 E et
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17. Investment properties

17. HEME

2010 2009
—Z—ZF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FBT
At 1st January R—A—H 185,231 295,498
Exchange differences M R 4,502 277
Fair value (losses)/gains ARE(EE), W (23,110) 4,136
Classified as assets PEERFIEEEEE (FiiE24)
held-for-sale (Note 24) - (114,680)
Disposal of HEMB AR (HFE32(c)
subsidiaries (Note 32(c)) (166,623) -
At 31st December B+=—A=+—H - 185,231
The following amounts have been recognised in LARFIBE R G W R ERARK ¢
the consolidated income statement:
2010 2009
—Z—ZF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FBT
Rental income AU A 1,516 1,767

For the year ended 31st December 2010, rental
income was derived from properties in Hong
Kong and Mainland China which have been
disposed of during the year.

At 31st December 2009, investment properties
with carrying amounts of HK$185,231,000 have
been pledged for banking facilities (Note 27).

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

BHE_Z-—ZF+-_A=+—HIEFE  HEK
ABRBEBUREERPEAL Y% - HEYE
ERFALE -

RZEBEZAE+_/F=+—HH REEA
185,231,000 T 2 I EMEE EIRITERBEE
(FizE27) T F LAKAR o



Notes to the Financial Statements

17. Investment properties (cont’d)

As at 31st December 2009, the Group’s interests
in investment properties at their carrying values

were analysed as follows:

In Mainland China, held on:
Leases of over 50 years

e

17. {EYMXE (]E)

 BEmRMET

RZZBZENFT-A=1T—0 *EERNKED

Kz tEas (REREERE) DT -

R BER - I T HRE ¢

B0 FHHEE

As at 31st December 2009, the future aggregate
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating lease in respect of its investment

properties classified as assets held-for-sale were

as follows:

Not later than one year

—FHAR

2010
—E-EF
HK$’000
FaT

2009
—ETNF
HK$’000
T

185,231

RZBZAFE+-_A=1+—8  AEBERETH
BRSO EMEET BB IEREEER

Wz R IR EAEA

EFRBETIT

2010
—E-EF
HK$’000
FHET

2009
—ETNF
HK$’'000
FBT

83
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18.

Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted investments, at cost

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from subsidiaries

RERE

Less: provision for impairment Ve

As at 31st December 2009 and 2010, the
amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 31st December 2010, the amount due
from a subsidiary of HK$110,089,000 (2009:
HK$25,740,000) was impaired and provided for.
The balance represented fund transfer to the
subsidiary in prior years. Due to the uncertainty
in recovering the balance, impairment loss for
amount due from the subsidiary was recognised
based on the difference between the carrying
amount and the estimated discounted net cash
flows from the subsidiary.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The carrying
values of amounts due from subsidiaries
approximate their fair values.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

FEEMHRE (RAA)

& KBt /B8 2 R 3RIR

18.

HEBARRE

Company
F4E
2010 2009
—Z—-ZF T hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT T
88,482 96,901
& L B S 2 BRI R IR
Company
b 3/
2010 2009
—2—-25F —EThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FAT
138,568 282,464
(110,089) (25,740)
28,479 256,724
RZZBENFR_Z-ZTF+_A=+—0

%WEAEZME&%EW*%EH&E*E

5%0

RIB-ZF+-_A=+—0 BRHNBRARZ

FIE 110,089,000 BT (= FF
I BAERERE -

N4 : 25,740,000
EHRRERANFEERZE

MEAR - ARZ B DR FETEEE - B

It FEUR BT I8 2 AR

IR 2R B 1R Tk 15 AR T B £

MEARZARRMEFRTRBESREFELER

MHEE °

eI B A R Z SRR TTRHE » FRE(EEKE

NAERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statemen't":
o PAREmRME

18. Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d) 18. RMELA TS (18)

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASH B A RIRKIE

As at 31st December 2009 and 2010, the RIEBENER-_E—ZTE+_A=1+—H8 fE
amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, B ATFIEAEIKH - 28 BIREREE o
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The carrying values of amounts due to FEBARZBEZ RAERFSAAERS -
subsidiaries approximate their fair values.

Details of principal subsidiaries, which in the EERAHAER  EE R/ _E—EF+ =
Directors’ opinion, materially affect the results A=+—BZFEEBKEATEZTENBA

and/or net assets of the Group as at 31st Bl Z FEIBE A HIFE 38 ©
December 2010 are set out in Note 38.
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19. Financial instruments by category

Group

Loans and receivables
Assets as per consolidated
balance sheet
Trade and other receivables
Pledged bank
deposits (Note 22)
Cash and cash
equivalents (Note 23)

Total

Other financial liabilities
Liabilities as per consolidated
balance sheet
Trade and other
payables (Note 29)
Loan from a shareholder
(Note 33)
Amount due to a related
company (Note 33)
Amount due to
a non-controlling
shareholder
Borrowings (Note 27)

Total

B RER T
mEEERRE
FIREE
B 5 Kk H M EKRIE
EHERITIF R
(FffzE22)
Re kB e
ZEY (Mi5E23)

st

Emi%E &
HAEBEBER
FinafE
B 5 R E MR KIE
(FffE29)
ARERE K (MHEE33)

FEN —HKBRERRIFR

(F7E33)
& A SE 4% 1 1
BRFRIA

BE (MsE27)

st

130 China Pipe Group Limited FEE%(&£EEERAT

19. BERNSHEMIR

2010 2009
—Z-ZF T hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
108,404 158,893
92,789 38,576
62,230 55,784
263,423 253,253
2010 2009
—2—-25F —EThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT
131,665 89,654

- 59,881

876 23,449

17 188

174,042 278,124
306,600 451,241




19. Financial instruments by category

(cont’d)

Company

Loans and receivables
Assets as per balance sheet

Deposits and other receivables

Amounts due from
subsidiaries (Note 18)
Cash and cash equivalents

(Note 23)

Total

Other financial liabilities
Liabilities as per balance sheet
Amounts due to
subsidiaries (Note 18)
Loan from a shareholder
(Note 33)

Total

Notes to the Financial Statements

ESANS

ERR B
BERERAREE

BE AR IR

& LBl T8 2 )R (P E 18)

ReRREFEY (MHE23)

st

AR E
BERERMARAR
FEASF Bt /B8 & I 3RIR (i RE 18)

PRERE R (FIRE33)

ezt

19. BERNSHEMI R ()

1 A SRR AT

e

2010 2009
—2—-=5F —EThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHET
117 236
28,479 256,724
680 877
29,276 257,837
2010 2009
—2—-25F —EThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHET
99,978 105,176

- 59,881

99,978 165,057
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20.

Inventories

Raw materials =R
Work in progress S m
Consumables SR
Finished goods i

At 31st December 2010, the provision
for impairment of inventories amounted
to approximately HK$25,356,000 (2009:
HK$30,092,000).

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses
and included in cost of sales amounted
to approximately HK$413,335,000 (2009:
HK$361,908,000).

At 31st December 2010, inventories held
by a PRC subsidiary with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$80,930,000 (2009:
HK$38,926,000) have been pledged for bank
borrowings (Note 27).

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

20. F8

2010 2009
—2—-=5F —EThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ERT FHET
17,902 17,956
6,828 6,010
1,941 1,603
203,874 154,879
230,545 180,448

RIE-ZTF+-_A=+—H FEREERFZE
#925,356,00078 7T (ZZEZ AL F : 30,092,000
)

HRAXHWFAEEXAB T ZFERANELN
413,335,000/ 7t ( —ZZ N4 : 361,908,000/%
JL) °

R_ZT—ZTFE+_A=+—H FEEELHAH
80,930,000 77t (ZZZ /1.4 ¢ 38,926,000/87T)
ZEERTEMBARES  EEBRITEER (K
FE27) T LA o



Notes to the Financial Statements

_ BBERME W,

21. Trade and other receivables 21. ESREMEIRIEA
Group Company
.3 FAF
2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-Bf | —TTNE | ZB-BE | —_TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TH#T FHIT TH#T T
Trade receivables BHER 100,279 135,773 - =
Less: provision for impairment W RERE (3,190) 2,612) - -
Trade receivables — net BHER— 55 97,089 133,161 - =
Prepayments SEINEN 61,238 7,608 1,211 167
Other receivables H e dlza
and assets, net REEFH 7,922 23,206 117 236
Rental deposits and other assets BaEs MEMmEE 3,393 2,526 - =
169,642 166,501 1,328 403
Less: non-current portion R SEmENED D (3,196) (3,061) - =
166,446 163,440 1,328 403
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other B HRIRIA - Afb W FIE - HtEERELD
receivables, other assets and rental deposits e EReRHEBRERNRBEES ©

approximate their fair values.
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21. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars BIT
RMB AR
USD £
MOP ke
EURO BT
AUD JEIT

The Group generally granted credit term of 90-
120 days under the segment of trading of pipes
and fittings and 60-90 days under the segment of
seamless steel pipes. The ageing analysis of the
trade receivables, based on the due date is as

follows:

Within credit period EEHA

1 to 30 days 1RE30X
31 to 60 days 31 RE60XK
61 to 90 days 61 RZE90K
91 to 120 days 91 RE120K
Over 120 days i 120K

134 China Pipe Group Limited FEE%(&£EEERAT

21. BHRAMBURIE ()

AEEE S LEMREFIRZRESEANIE

BEHE -

2010 2009
—E—2F ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
83,930 96,220
42,474 61,722
41,332 8,354
489 205
1,197 -
220 -
169,642 166,501

AEE—RETHREREFESHIRO-120 K K%
BRNEDRE0-0RZEEY - EHRUFIZ

FHB ZBRE DTN

2010 2009

ot 223 —TENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT TR
60,725 90,986
19,113 25,447
2,570 4,734
1,634 2,290
535 487
15,702 11,829
100,279 135,773




21.

Notes to the Financial Statement

Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Trade receivables that are current or past
due less than four months are not considered
impaired. As of 31st December 2010, trade
receivables of approximately HK$36,364,000
(2009: HK$42,175,000) were past due but
not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no
recent history of default. The ageing analysis of
these trade receivables is as follows:

1 to 30 days 1 RXE30K
31 to 60 days 31 RZE60X
61 to 90 days 61 XZE 90K
91 to 120 days 91 RE120K
Over 120 days F8iA 120K

As at 31st December 2010, trade receivables
of HK$3,190,000 (2009: HK$2,612,000) were
impaired and provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers,
which are in unexpected difficult financial
situations. These receivables are past due more
than 120 days.

 BIEmRME

21. BHRAMBURIE ()

BEisk @ B E A LA T 2 B B EMHBET S =
BERE RZZ2—ZF+=-_A=+—H &
5 & UL 3R 1A #)36,364,000/8 7o ( — T T N4 ¢
42,175,000 7T ) B 8 BB RIERE © 2558
H-#t W EARERCHECBIRFPER - ZF
B SR HIBZ BRI DITAT ¢

2010 2009
—e-®% | —TThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
19,113 25,447
2,570 4,734
1,634 2,290

535 487

12,512 9,217
36,364 42,175

R-E—ZEF+_A=+—H BEEWKZE
3,190,000/ L (ZEZ N4 : 2,612,000/87L) 2
ERERE - AR 2 REREYGRIEE ZERETE
HEAMBRECEP AR - 25 RKEIES 2
BiE120K °
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21.

Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Movements on the provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

At 1st January Rn—H—H

Provision for impairment BB

Receivables written off during FREUGRIA R
the year as uncollectible EE €

Unused amounts reversed RE)AFIEREE

Exchange difference M ERR

At 31st December R+=—A=+—8

The addition and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement. Amounts charged to the
provision account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.

As at 31st December 2010, other receivables
of approximately HK$25,045,000 (2009:
HK$42,377,000) were impaired and provided
for. The amount of additional charge was
approximately HK$380,000 for the year ended
31st December 2010 (2009: HK$18,289,000)
and has been included in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement. During 2010, the drop of
provision for other receivables amounted to
approximately HK$18,834,000 was due to
deconsolidation of subsidiaries upon disposal.
The individually impaired other receivables
mainly related to counterparties, which are in
unexpected difficult financial situations.

The other classes within trade and other
receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. The Group does
not hold any collateral as security.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

21. BHRAMBURIE ()

B o RWGR 2 BIEREZE T

2010 2009
—E—2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
2,612 967

904 2,369

- (226)

(375) (498)

49 -

3,190 2,612

FL 2 RE R WA RIS MR 2 BB E T AR A
WeEsRAZ —REITBER - REERD RN
SR —RRBAR TS WD ERINR S FHEH o

R-_ZT—ZF+-_A=+—H  HbEKZELDH
25,045,000/ 87 (ZEZNF : 42,377,000787L)
EERERE R_ZT—ZFF+_FA=1+—8H -
FAINBEAE £ 584 A 380,0008 L (ZEZENF ¢
18,289,000 7T ) * WEFT ARG WEmE A 2 —
BRITHRERAET - RZZT—FF - EMERK
BRI ERME T2 ©5%)518,834,000/8 7T * 2
AR ENBAREE LS ABRFTE - ERIR
Bz EMEUEIEE EW KR aETE MG A B 15 R
RZEHFT °

85 R EAM BT IRRE IR EEA 2 RIE

RiE BBz &RAEERR A Ld SR EKRIR
ZARME - AREWES A TR -



Notes to the Financial Statement

22. Pledged bank deposit

As at 31st December 2010, bank deposit
of HK$75,000,000 (2009: HK$30,000,000)
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and bank
deposit of HK$17,789,000 (2009: HK$8,576,000)
denominated in RMB were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 27).

The effective interest rate on pledged bank
deposit was 0.72% (2009: 0.24%) per annum
and these deposits are matured within 12 to 166
days (2009: 4 to 102 days).

23. Cash and cash equivalents

 BIEmRME

22, BIEHBITER

RZZE—ZF+=A=+—H ' 75,000,000 %7C
(ZZZT A4 : 30,000,000 7T ) LA TTEHE R
17,789,000 7t (Z T T N4 : 8,576,000/ 7T )
UARETEZBITERE FAER - EAAE
BIRTTEEBEE 2 EA R (HE27) -

BRI ERZEBRMNEEFE0.72%(=ZFF
NEF 1 024%)  WWEGFEXRZBBENTF12KE
166 K (ZZEZTNF 4 XE102K) ©

23. BeaRBaERY

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS
Maximum exposure to creditrisk  BEAS R &S EERE

Group Company
F5KE FAFE

2010 2009 2010 2009
Z2-2F | —TTNF | ZEB-BF | ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FiE&xT FET FExT FHAT
62,230 55,784 680 877
62,060 55,563 680 876
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23. Cash and cash equivalents (cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the Group and the
Company’s cash and cash equivalents are

denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars
RMB

usb

AUD

EURO

Other currencies

BT
AR
ey
BT
BT
HipE#

The conversion of these RMB denominated

balances into foreign currencies and the

remittance of these funds out of the Mainland

China is subject to the exchange control
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

23. HeRBeFEY(#E)

REBEARRZRERREEBM I REEHE

BRIATEREHE
Group Company
F5%EH 075
2010 2009 2010 2009
B2 | —TTHF | ZB-BF | _TTHF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET TET TAT
43,309 40,526 680 877
17,301 13,128 - -
38 518 - -
203 394 - -
5 1 - -
1,374 1,217 - -
62,230 55,784 680 877

% EAAREHEZ SRR BINE RS2 F
AEHTERM
HIFEIEPTIR o

A kw2
B

FEBRERINEE



Notes to the Financial Statement

24. Assets held-for-sale and
discontinued operation

(a)

(b)

Assets held-for-sale

As at 31st December 2009, investment
properties held in Hong Kong have been
presented as assets held-for-sale as
disposal actions had been initiated at 2009
year end. The disposals were completed in
January and February 2010.

At 31st December 2009, assets held-for-
sale with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$114,680,000 located in Hong Kong
have been pledged for banking facilities
(Note 27).

Discontinued operation

On 21st December 2010, the Group
completed the disposal of the entire equity
interest in Noble Win International Limited
which was engaged in investment in
properties in the Mainland China through its
subsidiaries.

The Group had
disclosures in respect of the discontinued
operation of the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31st
December 2009.

re-presented the

 BIEmAME

24, BEHEEERRILEERS

()

(b)

FEHEEE

R-ZBZAFF+-_A=1t—8 REBH
BZBREMECERIFLEEERE -
HETHER _ZZENFFRARM - &
SHER_Z-ZF-AR-AMTRK -

R-ZEZNF+_A=+—H REEY
114,680,000 BT 2 RBBHNIFIELEE
ECRBITRE (HE27) T A -

RiIEEBER

RIB-—ZF+-_A-+—B £EE=
RO EERBERER QR MAERAE
ZAFERENBARRTEABIEEY

ERE -

ARBEEN2ABRE_SEAF
+oAS+—BUFEZRIEEEEE
b AR 7 P -
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24. Assets held-for-sale and
discontinued operation (cont’d)

Analysis of the results of discontinued operation

is as follows:

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other (losses)/gains, net

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

Operating loss
Finance costs, net

LLoss before income tax
Tax credit

Loss after tax of discontinued operation

Pre-tax gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Tax expense

After-tax gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss for the year for discontinued operation
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

24. HEHEFERKILEERE ()

LN
HERA

EH

Hib (B51R), M58
SHE KD AR
—RRITRER
REEE
WHEERFER
BAIEE

HEHR

RIEEEXBZBR

HEM B AR Yk (BAT)
BB

HEM B AR Y (BiR)
RIEEBRE L FEER
FEfA:

ARBBERAA
a2 g 4

RIPEBRIBZEEINAT

2010 2009
—E-2F —TThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FAT
1,516 1,767
1,516 1,767
(23,182) 4,136
(116) (603)
(2,897) (19,198)
(24,679) (13,898)
(3,052) (3,810)
(27,731) (17,708)

29 1,362
(27,702) (16,346)
12,847 =
12,847 =
(14,855) (16,346)
(14,855) (16,346)
(14,855) (16,346)




Notes to the Financial Statement

BRI

24. Assets held-for-sale and 24, BEHEEERRILLEERXS (E)
discontinued operation (cont’d)
2010 2009
—E—2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Operating activities cash flows ~ &EEKZBEN (9,676) (5,325)
Investing activities cash flows KEEB 2IREN 114,680 (44)
Financing activities cash flows ~ BE/EEZIRE R (106,389) 6,573
(1,385) 1,204
2010 2009
—EZ-ZF T NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FBT
Cumulative income recognised B EZ Rz T
directly in equity TERH ZET A
Foreign exchange translation b 54, 38 B
adjustments - 12,589
25. Share capital 25. &&
Number of shares
A&
thousands HK$’000
T8 THT
At 1st January 2009 RZZEZNF—HA—H 12,532,700 25,065
Issue of new shares for WiE—=x
acquisition of a (S ENGT
subsidiary (note) BITEAR M (P EE) 800,000 1,600
At 31st December 2009 RZBEZNF+=—A=+—A1 13,332,700 26,665
At 1st January and RZZE—ZF—H—H
31st December 2010 k+=ZA=+—8 13,332,700 26,665
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es to the Einancial Statements

25. Share capital (cont’d)

The authorised share capital of the Company is
HK$500,000,000, comprising 250,000 million
shares (2009: 250,000 million shares) with a par
value of HK$0.002 per share (2009: HK$0.002
per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

Note: On 11th November 2009, the Company issued
800,000,000 new shares for partial consideration
of acquisition of Kiyofo. The fair value of shares
issued was based on the closing price of
HK$0.061 per share at the date of acquisition.
Details of the acquisition are set out in Note 34.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option
scheme (“Scheme”) under which the Directors
of the Company are authorised at their absolute
discretion, to invite any eligible participants
as defined in the Scheme, to take up options
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
subscription price will be determined by the
Board, but shall be at least the highest of (a)
the closing price of shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date on which the relevant options
are deemed to be granted and accepted in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme (“the
Commencement Date”), which must be a day
on which the Hong Kong Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities
(“Trading Day”); (b) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five Trading Days immediately preceding
the Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares. A consideration of HK$10
is payable on acceptance of the grant of option.
The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme
may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of adoption of
the Scheme. The Scheme became effective for a
period of ten years commencing from 24th June
2004.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

25. B&%E(#8)

ANA T2 A TE B AR £500,000,0008 7 © ER
H{E0.002 L (ZEZ NF : B KA E0.002
7 7T ) #£250,000,000,0000%( = B & 1, & :
250,000,000,000 8% ) 485X - FTB B BEITRHEE
BE -

Mg R=ZZTZAFE+—A+—8B ' AQF BT
800,000,000 #FT X E B IE SR E Z 2 H R
8 o BITRMZ AR BERKWER ZKME - BIF
f%0.061 BT o YEEFFBSI A HIEES4 ©

BRERE
ARTCHRA— BB ERT S ([EREE)) -
Bt - REARFEZ2RNBEFIAEER
28E (EELBRENE) BRI REAR AR
MzBERE RBESHEETSETE  UKRIA
() Ain 0B RERE AR 1R /= 1 R B S A1 B IR
BHRZEME R (TFRHBH)) (ARBBBRAM
REFHFEBEFB2BHN(RZE ) EEBH
R ERERMABWHE : (b) BRONEZRRF
HBHREERER S A EE LB ME A RE
R FHWRTHE K () ROEE=&Eh2&
BE o B 2 S0 BAER - ARAAXN
1078 2 RUE - RIBEIERT8IR h 2 BAHE Y
RzBh&E=EE - TMFERBRAERESEE
BARRAEBRITRAZ10% - BRE SR —F
FOFEARA-THBEF TFRBER
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. BRI

25. Share capital (cont’d) 25, Bx&(#8)

()  On 3rd December 2009, 592,000,000 ) R=ZFFAFT-A=R ARERES
share options were offered to and accepted K fE 8 2 #) 30 B 4 £ 592,000,000 {3 i
by Directors and employees, with an Pt ZEBEBREZITEER0.071 BTN
exercise price of HK$0.071 and an option BERZTEARATF  A-FTNF
period of 10 years commencing from ToAZRRBE=—E-NFT-A=A
3rd December 2009 and expiring on 2nd HA(BRERMA) - RTEKANBR
December 2019 (both days inclusive). The ROBBRER - WRATHTATRE

options granted to the grantees are vested
in stages and be exercised in the following

manner:

Maximum percentage of the options exercisable Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

AIfTEZ R EREE AL fTERRAERES 2 Lz KR

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee Upon the expiry of 6 months from 3rd December 2009 and

Ef AR AR 2 BEA S 2 20% up to 2nd December 2019

“ERNEFT-AZBERIAERERE 2-F-0E

TZAZRL

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee Upon the expiry of 18 months from 3rd December 2009 and

AR AR 2 B E B 7 20% up to 2nd December 2019

“ETAFTZAZRRHT\EARERE 222N

F+-AZALE

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee Upon the expiry of 30 months from 3rd December 2009 and

EfTER AR 2 BB RES S 2 20% up to 2nd December 2019
B-ZENFT-AZARH=TEAERE E=T—N
F+ZAZAL

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee Upon the expiry of 42 months from 3rd December 2009 and

R AR Z B EA S 2 20% up to 2nd December 2019
H-ZTAFT_A-BRAD+_EARRE 2_F
—NE+ZAZRLE

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee Upon the expiry of 54 months from 3rd December 2009 and

TR AR 2 BB E 2 20% up to 2nd December 2019
H-ZTAFT_AZHRALTEEARRE Z=F
—NE+ZAZRLE
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25. Share capital (cont’d)

(i)  On 5th May 2010, 16,000,000 share
options were offered to and accepted by a
Director and an employee, with an exercise
price of HK$0.083 and an option period
of 10 years commencing from 5th May
2010 and expiring on 4th May 2020 (both
days inclusive). The options granted to the
grantees are vested in stages and to be
exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of the options exercisable

iTEZREERRE AL

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee

RUERTARR AR 2 PR 82 20%

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee

AERAR AR 2 B RUE R E 2 20%

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee

AEFAR AR i 2 BRERE 2 20%

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee

AERER AR 2 BRE R 20%

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee

AERAR AR i 2 FBRE R 20%

Vesting of options granted to certain
employees are subject to achievement of
profit target.

144 China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

25.

B (#8)

iy MRZZ—ZFRAAA AEER—E
Ehk—{lE 8 Z4IE E £ 49 16,000,000
MR - ZEERE Z1TEER0.083%
TRBEREZITERRATFE BT —
EFERARHRABRE_ZE_TFAAMNA
FIE(BEEEMK) - BRTERANER
EDPEERRE - WA T ARITHE -

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

TR E 2 Lz R

Upon the expiry of 6 months from 5th May 2010 and up to
4th May 2020

B-Z-ZFRARARHAEAERE E-F-ZFH
AMBIE

Upon the expiry of 18 months from 5th May 2010 and up to
4th May 2020

H-T-TFRARAET\EAERE E_FB_FF
ﬁﬂmﬁt

Upon the expiry of 30 months from 5th May 2010 and up to
4th May 2020

H-_Z-TFRARBARG=TEAERE E-T_TF
EHEHE

Upon the expiry of 42 months from 5th May 2010 and up to
4th May 2020
m-F-FTERARALHNT - EARRE E-F°%
FRAAMALE

Upon the expiry of 54 months from 5th May 2010 and up to
4th May 2020
B-Z-ZFRARARGATEERAERE E-2-F
FRAMALE

BYaTREZBREREIEMNB R AIRE
THERES -
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25. Share capital (cont’d)

Movements in the number of share options
outstanding during the year are as follows:

25. B&%E(#8)

FA - MATTERBERE 222w

Average exercise price

in HK$ per share Number of

BRERZ options

FIYITEE (BT) EEIESE

At 1st January 2009 RZZETNF—H—H -
Granted and accepted eSS RIZE3 N 0.071 592,000,000

At 31st December 2009 RZEENF+_A=1+—H

and 1st January 2010 r—E—=ZHF—HF—H 0.071 592,000,000
Granted and accepted B A 0.083 16,000,000
Lapsed B R 0.071 (36,400,000)
At 31st December 2010 R_ZE—ZF+_A=+—H 0.071 571,600,000

P 571,600,000 i (= ZZ L4 : 592,000,000) 8
R - 77,600,000 0% (T TAE ¢ &) BAIFT
R B E -

Out of 571,600,000 outstanding share options
(2009: 592,000,000), 77,600,000 share options
(2009: Nil) were exercisable.
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26. Reserves

Group

At 1st January 2009

Loss for the year

Currency translation differences

Issue of new shares for acquisttion
of a subsioliary (Note 34)

Share based payment

At 31st December 2009 and

1st January 2010
Loss for the year
Currency translation differences
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 32(c))
Share based payment

At 31st December 2010

Company

At 1st January 2009

Issue of new shares for acquisition

of a subsidiary (Note 34)
Loss for the year
Share based payment

At 31st December 2009 and
1st January 2010

Loss for the year

Share based payment

At 31st December 2010

R-EENE-F-A
FEERE
ghagzE
WERBARE
#iik (Hzta4)
IR AR

R-EEAET-A=+-AR
“2-%%-F-H
FEER

EhaEEn

L EMBAR (Hksae)
R BERAIR

R=2-FFt-A=1-H

R=2ENE—-R
KEHEAR

BT (HzE34)
EEEE
WD BRI
RIBTHET-A=+-BR
“2-%%-F-H
EEEE
SABR A BRI

R=E-ZF+-A=1—H

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

26. f#iE
REE
Capital ~ Merger Share based
Share  reserve  reserve Exchange  payment  Retained
premium  (note (i)  (note(i))  reserve  reserve  earnings Total
EERE  AHEE WG
ROAR (W) (Wia) EREE EROHR  GEEH #n
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TEr 2 TERT 2 TET @ TERT 2 TERT @ TER
79418 34,115 3,700 16,343 - 45983 379559
- - - - - (39662 (39662
- - - 570 - - 570
47,000 - - - - - 47,200
- - - - 718 - 718
126,618 34,115 3,700 16,913 718 206321 388,385
- - - - - (122769  (122,769)
- - - 4510 - - 4510
- - - (15488) - - (15488)
- - - - 5,104 - 5,104
126,618 34,115 3,700 5,935 5,822 83552 259,742
¥ /NG
Contributed  Share based
Share surplus payment Accumulated
premium (note (i) reserve deficit Total
BARE WG
ROERE (W) EROAR E4] ] ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
79,418 86,759 - (28,894) 137,283
47,200 - - - 47,200
- - - (23,218) (23,218)
- - 718 - 718
126,618 86,759 718 (52,112) 161,983
- - - (182,685) (182,685)
- - 5,104 - 5,104
126,618 86,759 5,822 (234,797) (15,598)
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26. Reserves (cont'd)

Notes:

)

(i)

(i)

(v)

The capital reserve of the Group arose from
acquisition of the remaining interests in a
subsidiary in 1999. The balance represents
the excess of the fair value attributable to the
net assets and liabilities acquired over the
consideration paid.

The merger reserve of the Group arising from
the group reorganisation is determined by the
difference between the nominal value of shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares deemed to have been issued.

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of
World Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. and the value
of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries
acquired by the Company in 2000. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, subject to a solvency test. At
the Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its component of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

At 31st December 2010, there is no distributable
profit for the Company (2009: reserves of the
Company available for distribution, including the
contributed surplus, amounted to approximately
HK$34,647,000).

 BEmEM

26. fEiE ()

(i)

(i)

()

REE 2 BARERIFN — NN FRE R
BARZ# TR - ARBRIEMBAFEER
BREZAREBHEXNREZER -

AEBREESAMEL 2 A GHRE - TDiREE
EEEBAZMBARROEERRECETZ
RABBO EEME R ZHETE °

KA ZEANBBTIIEARR R AIREWorld
Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. & #F 2 3517 & @A M 2%
T BOEEENARFREE BB ARR =
TETFEEFEMEMZER - RIEERE
—NN\—FRFE(KHEE]) - BABRKREREAR
BENEEEH IR ZBRT A5k T
R EAKEZERE F BARBRETSERE
RAMT B A A2 FEBAAK IS ©

R-E—ZTF+_A=+—8  AQREAHS
REF (ZFENE  AHDRHEE (BEEAR
#4) 434,647,000/ 7T) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

27. Borrowings

Non-current
Long term bank
borrowings (note (i))

Current

Current portion of long term
bank borrowings (note (i)

Short term bank
borrowings (note (ii))

Trust receipt loans (note (ii))

Representing:

Unsecured
Secured (note (vii))

27. &8

FERE
RHRITEE
(BFE®)

e E

RHRITEEZ
BNEAED Sy (BHRE ()

R ERRTTE R (MHEE ()

EFEBIRE R (MYRE (i)

o

EER
B (P EE (vil))

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

2010 2009
—2—-25F —EThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
- 39,973

- 6,586
106,731 143,381
67,311 88,184
174,042 238,151
174,042 278,124
1,511 6,367
172,531 271,757
174,042 278,124
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27. Borrowings (cont’d)

Notes:

)

(i)

As at 31st December 2009, the long term bank
borrowings were secured and issued at floating
rates. The carrying amounts and fair values of the
long term bank borrowings were as follows:

Long term bank borrowings ~ =HEJRITIEE
Carrying amounts BRE
Fair values ARfE

The fair values of long term bank borrowings
approximate their carrying amounts as the
impact of discounting was not significant. The fair
values of long term borrowings were estimated
based on discounted cash flow approach using
the prevailing market rates of interest available
to the Group of 5.94% for financial instruments
with substantially the same terms and
characteristics for the year ended 31st December
2009, depending on the type and currency of
borrowings.

The carrying amounts of the short term bank
borrowings and trust receipt loans approximate
their fair values. As at 31st December 2010,
short term bank borrowings of approximately
HK$106,731,000 (2009: HK$143,381,000)
and trust receipt loans of approximately
HK$65,800,000 (2009: HK$81,817,000) are
secured.

 BEmEM

27. B8 (i#)

(i)

R-ZEZNF+-A=+—R0  RERTEEN
REERLIRF BN XS - RERTEEZR
ELBEAAENT

2010 2009
—ZT—-ZF§ —TENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FHET

- 46,559

- 47,734

HRITRZFELTEXN - HRARITEEZR
AEEREERSERY - REEEZAAER
FREZHHIRER  MRAEEERZHRTH
BHEE A% HBE_ETNF+-_A=1+—H
LFEFE R SR ASAER 2 £ 8 T AZE SR
EBIBAME -

EHRTEERETRREER A EAKS
ARERE RZTE—TF+_A=+—0 '8
106,731,000 T 2 RHARITER (ZFZNF ¢
143,381,000 7% 7T ) & #765,800,000%8 Jt 2 1= 7%
WHEER(—ETH4F : 81,817,000/87T) AHHE
ﬁH °
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27. Borrowings (cont’d)

Notes: (cont’d)

(i) ~ The bank borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

Bank borrowings:
Hong Kong dollars
RMB

RITIEE
BT
ARE

(iv)  The effective interest rates (per annum) at the
balance sheet date are as follows:

Long term bank borrowings
Short term bank borrowings
Trust receipt loans

RHRITEE
RHRITIEE
EFEBIRER

(v All short term bank borrowings and trust receipt
loans will mature within one year. The maturity
of long term bank borrowings outstanding as at
31st December 2009 was as follows:

Within one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years

Wholly repayable
within five years

Wholly repayable
after five years

—FR

—FEMF
MEERF
ARNTFENTBEEER

RFREBBEE

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

27. B8 (i#)

BifeE : ()

@iy EIRITEEUATIEEESE

vy REEAR

2010 2009

—E—EF —ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAT

67,311 111,610

106,731 166,514

174,042 278,124
CIRITEEZ BEREFEMLT ¢

2010 2009

o Y- —TENF

% %

- 6.53

6.49 5.71

1.67 3.07

V)  FERBRITEERETREEFSEN—FN

BH -

EESREZZHAMT

2010
—Z2-2F
HK$’000
TFET

TEHF+—A=+—H  EHEG

2009
—ETNF
HK$’000
FHTT

6,586
6,586
19,758

32,930

13,629

46,559
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27. Borrowings (cont’d)

Notes: (cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to
interest rate changes and the contractual
repricing dates at the balance sheet dates are as
follows:

NEAZEAT

Six months or less

The banking facilities were secured by
corporate guarantees and certain assets
held by subsidiaries. The carrying amounts
of the assets include property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$3,520,000
(2009: HK$73,084,000) (Note 14), land use
rights of approximately HK$26,896,000 (2009:
HK$28,837,000) (Note 15), investment properties
of nil (2009: HK$185,231,000) (Note 17), assets
held-for-sale of nil (2009: HK$114,680,000) (Note
24), inventories of approximately HK$80,930,000
(2009: HK$38,926,000) (Note 20) and bank
deposits of approximately HK$92,789,000
(2009: HK$38,576,000) (Note 22).

28. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets to be
recovered after 12 months
Deferred tax liabilities to
be settled after 12 months

BAETRIRE &

EREHIAERE

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using tax
rates of the relevant subsidiaries applicable to the

period when the asset is expected to be realised
or the liability to be settled, based on tax rates
that have been substantively enacted by the

balance sheet date.

27.

28.

R+ @A &K E

R+ —EAKRZHEZ

 BIBmEMEE

fE& (&)
GEREC)
V) REER FEBEEEROFEEHRARE

FEBARBRET

2010 2009
—ZT—-ZF§ —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
106,731 189,839
(i) SBITRERAREREWNBARZHE ZEEEE
IR - ZEEEZRAEPTEL 3,520,000 T2
Y - BEREE(ZEZNF ¢ 73,084,000
7t) (FisE14) ~ #26,896,000% JT < £ i {F
#(—ZT N4 : 28,837,000 7T ) (KizE15)
WEMERZT(—TTNE : 185,231,000 7T)
(M3E17) - HELHEEERAT(ZTTNF
114,680,00078 7t ) (FizE24) « #780,930,000 7%
TZEE(ZEZTNF : 38,926,000/87T) (KizE
20) MERITIEFA) 92,789,000 7L (Z BT A4 :
38,576,000 78 7T ) (fi7E 22) fE#KH -
EIERIA
2010 2009
=T —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&T T
4,578 11,761
(4,541) (18,736)
37 (6,975)

EERBARARBEEINABNBEAREREES
BaaEaE s HRmMmERsiE(REERE
MRk B M) (F R BURE -
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28. Deferred taxation (cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

The net movement on the deferred tax account is
as follows:

At 1st January n—H—H

Acquisition of

a subsidiary (Note 34) (ffizE34)
Credited to income statement  EUREEIRET A

— continuing operations —REEEEK

— discontinued operation — IR EB R
Exchange differences fEH =58
At 31st December B+=—A=+—H

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

WHE—RHBAF

28.

EEEIRIA (48])

BEATERENIKBASMTIREELNRRARE
HiH - METHBREEREERARBESRF—
HISHER - —RERT A B KRR ERDE
RABERBRBENFESE - BRI EEHRIRE
ERECH AR EEAEH -

TR B 2 28 FEN T

2010 2009
—2—-25F —ZEThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHT
(6,975) (1,997)

- 9,116)

6,814 2,599

301 1,540

(103) (1)

37 (6,975)
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DB RMEE

28. Deferred taxation (cont’d) 28. EIEIRIA (48)
The movements in deferred tax assets and BEEMIBEERBBERFEANE8) (Rt RRHE
liabilities during the year, without taking into R EANEEZ &) |

consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax assets BIERIAEE
Tax
Tax losses depreciation Total
RBER RIEHE gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T#T T#T
At 1st January 2009 RZEZNF—A—H = - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34) Ui — i E A r] (5 34) 9,467 = 9,467
Credited to income statement WA 2,364 = 2,364
Exchange differences b =R 2 - 2
At 31st December 2009 RZEENF+=-_A=1+—H
and 1st January 2010 N=_T—ZTF—A—H 11,833 - 11,833
(Charged)/credited to TEEsBR (0BR), A
income statement
—continuing operations —BELSEER (11,943) 4,466 (7,477)
Exchange differences bE =% 110 112 222
At 31st December 2010 RZE—ZF+=-A=+—H - 4,578 4,578
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28. Deferred taxation (cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1st January 2009 RZZBZAF—HA—H
Credited to income statement FEUWEIRAA

— continuing operations —RFEEEEH

— discontinued operation —RIFEREET

KRB A

Acquisition of a

subsidiary (Note 34) (BIzE34)
Exchange differences b =%
At 31st December 2009 RZZEENF+ZA=1+—H

and 1st January 2010 k_F-ZF—Hf—H
Credited/(charged) FEWESERET A (30R)

to income statement

— continuing operations —REEREER

— discontinued operation — IR B R
Exchange differences b Z5E

At 31st December 2010

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax losses carried forward to the extent that
the realisation of the related tax benefit through
the future taxable profits is probable. The
Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of approximately HK$24,342,000 (2009:
HK$13,974,000) in respect of accumulated
tax losses amounting to approximately
HK$111,672,000 (2009: HK$64,962,000) as
at 31st December 2010, that can be carried
forward against future taxable income. As at 31st
December 2010, the accumulated tax losses
amounting to approximately HK$69,597,000
(2009: HK$38,299,000) will be expired in five
years. There is no expiry date for the other tax
losses.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

RZE—ZF+-A=+—H

. EIETRIA (4)
EEHEAE
Tax Revaluation

depreciation on assets Total
RIARE EfEE #agt

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THT THT THET
(452) (1,545) (1,997)

85 150 235

297 1,243 1,540
- (18,583) (18,583)
= ©) ©)
(70) (18,738) (18,808)

1 14,220 14,291

(1) 302 301
- (325) (325)
- (4,541) (4,541)

RIEFTIS T I & 2 T A FE AR RE B 7% A 2 Al B i R
P JE SR Tt v | A IR T B P 45 88 R TR I 1R VR H 1
Re NEBWAR T —ZFTF+_A=+—H
Al AR S AR R FE R TN A 2 BT BB E 1B
#9111,672,0008 T ( = T Z A, & : 64,962,000
7 IT ) TE SRR IE BT 15 1 18 & EE £V 24,342,000 7
TT(ZFEZNF 1 13,974,00087L) - R=Z —
ZEF+ZA=+—H ZE2FABEEBBRED
69,597,000/ 7TL( = & Z N, F : 38,299,000
TT) - iR AFE A EIER o oAb 1 IE E5 R I R fE W
HE§ -



Notes to the Financial Statement

BRI

29. Trade and other payables 20. B RHEMEMRR

Group Company
F5E b /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2K | —TThE | ZB-BF | ZTTNHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHIT TERT FHIT
Trade payables BE5ER 87,425 56,485 - =
Accrued expenses and TEIRB A&
other payables E AR 55,412 39,206 8,148 1,200
142,837 95,691 8,148 1,200
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade NEB B S ETMERBOTWOT -
payables is as follows:
2010 2009
—=—25F —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Within 30 days 30 KAA 21,943 18,619
31 to 60 days 31 RE60X 5,449 3,854
61 to 90 days 61 KE 90K 692 5,588
Over 90 days A 90 K 59,341 28,424
87,425 56,485

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and NEB2E S REMENFIBEZERETSEBILZIAT

other payables are denominated in the following HELE
currencies:

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
Hong Kong dollars BT 29,267 26,755
UsD =TT 33,855 16,593
RMB AR 75,353 47,870
EURO BRIT 3,695 4,158
Other currencies H e 667 315
142,837 95,691
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30. Operating lease commitment 30.
Land and buildings T RIEF
Not later than one year BB —F
Later than one year and BR—FETNBEARF
not later than five years
Later than five years BB AE
Equipments SR
Not later than one year DB —F
Later than one year and BE—FETNBBRF

not later than five years

The lease terms are between six months to ten
years, and the majority of lease agreements
are renewable at the end of the lease period at
market rate.

31. Financial Guarantee Contract 31.

As at 31st December 2010, a subsidiary of
the Group in Mainland China has provided a
corporate guarantee (with maximum exposure of
approximately HK$21.9 million) in favor of a bank
to support the banking facilities of approximately
HK$43.9 million obtained by an independent third
party which is required to provide 50% pledged
deposit upon drawdown (31st December 2009:
HK$29.2 million against which no pledged
deposit was required). This guarantee has
been provided as part of counter security
arrangement entered into by the subsidiary
with the independent third party, whereby
the independent third party has also provided
corporate guarantee in favor of the subsidiary for
banking facilities up to approximately HK$47.4
million. The financial guarantee contract is
not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements due to its insignificant value.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

EEENRE

Group

*TRE
2010 2009
%% | —TThH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
15,375 15,456
18,834 25,640
145 967
34,354 42,063
378 -
1,251 =
1,629 -
35,983 42,063

MEMNTAEAZTF  T2HHEESONE
S MRIZTHEEL -

MBRESH

R-Z—TF+-A=+—H8 AEERFEA
18— R B A R A — (B 5 = S RTRE
& iy M ERT IR 2 A Bl & IR 49 & 43,900,000 78
T B EREE R 50% % AL B 5 = iR
AT REE A (R Z &5 R4 421,900,000
BIr) (ZEZNAE+-HA=+—H : 29,200,000
BT ERWERBERCEXR) - ZEERA
WEBAREBE=HF] ' ADHRERNE
B RENBYE = AMBRARREARE
R DAEV{SIRTTR & REE #95 47,400,000 B 7T
AR BERENNEBETER @ BUSEREE
TS SRR NFERR
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BRI

32. Notes to the consolidated statement 32. IFERERERME
of cash flows

(@ Reconciliation of loss before income () BAIBENELSEEERS (A E
tax to net cash (used in)/generated EFHEYEER
from operations

2010 2009
—2-2f —ITNE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT
Loss before income tax from BELELB AR
continuing operations (157,866) (25,272)
Loss before income tax from RIEEEER Z TREE
discontinued operation (27,731) (17,708)
(185,597) (42,980)
Adjustments for: SR T
Depreciation e 11,903 4329
Amortisation 8] 658 108
Loss on disposal of property, HEWZ  BER
plant and equipment, net (note) RiE BEFE () 10 =
Fair value loss/(gains) on investment properies &£ A4 EEE/ () 23,110 (4,136)
Interest income MEHA (307) (119)
Interest expenses MEZH 17,937 13,104
Provision for impairment of trade 85 REM BRI ER
and other receivables 5,886 20,084
(Write-back of provision)/provision FERE(EE) B
for impairment of inventories (4,736) 13,290
Impairment loss on property, plant nE - BELEECIEER
and equipments 98,900 -
Impairment loss on land use rights TitERE RESE 2,471 =
Impairment loss on goodwil BELREEE 23,050 -
Share based payments IR BEBRFR 5,104 718
Changes in working capital: EEEREY:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BE(Em),/Hd (42,435) 134,690
(Increase)/decrease in trade B ARG (Em),/F)
and other receivables (7,434) 53,512
Decrease in financial assets BRAAEBBERTR
at fair value through profit or loss HEBEERD - 22,493
Increase/(decrease) in trade g5 REMEMEND/ (RD)
and other payables 49,515 (91,940)
Decrease in amount due to JER —fFEE I RR IR R
a non-controlling shareholder (118) (10,092)
Decrease in amounts due to related companies  [ESEEER AZUERD - (1,994)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (/) /554 %48 (2,083) 111,067
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32. Notes to the consolidated statement
of cash flows (cont’d)

(@) Reconciliation of loss before income
tax to net cash (used in)/generated
from operations (cont’d)

Note: Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment comprises:

Net book amount BREFAE
Loss on disposal & B e
Proceeds from disposal &SRB RIE
Represented by: R« -

Cash B&

Other receivable Hfth FEUER

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

32. FRERERERMEE ()

@ BABBREKLEEBRE (FA) E

£ FEYR (&)

Mid: HWEVE BERRBZASEREER

&

2010
-5
HK$’ 000
F#xT

353
(10)

2009
—ZTTNF
HK$’'000
FHIT

343

22
321

343
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32. Notes to the consolidated statement
of cash flows (cont’d)

32. FRERERERMEE ()

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary (b) WE—RMBEAF
2010 2009
—g-%% —ZENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T
Net assets acquired BEAFEE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) WE IR IR (PiEE 14) - 106,897
Land use rights (Note 15) TifE R (Fi3E15) - 30,638
Inventories (3] - 68,074
Trade and other receivables B 5 RAMEKGIE - 49,781
Pledged bank deposit BRBTER - 17,148
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREZEY - 1,572
Amount due to a shareholder [ERREE - (10,225)
Trade and other payables B S REMERFE - (104,121)
Borrowings & - (68,592)
Deferred tax assets (Note 28) EERIREE (M 28) - 9,467
Deferred tax liabilties (Note 28) EEBIRAE (M 28) - (18,583)
Net assets AEFE - 82,056
Non-controling interests SR R R - (32,822)
- 49234
Goodwill B - 22,266
- 71,500
Satisfied by: SULER
Cash paid B¢ - 22,700
Consideration shares RERR - 48,800
- 71,500
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect BElE-—ZNEAR
of acquisition of a subsidlary: LRETLFEA -
Cash paid Bfffe - (22,700)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEEARERREZED - 1,572
Net cash outflow in respect BRWE-—FNEAT
of acquisition of a subsidlary RS TIFE - (21,128)

—ZE—FHFFH Annual Report 2010

159



Notes to the Financial Statements

& U nmmRE

160

32. Notes to the consolidated statement

of cash flows (cont’d)

(c)

Disposal of subsidiaries

Net assets disposed
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other payables

Net assets
Exchange reserves released
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash received

Analysis of net cash inflow in
respect of disposal of subsidiaries:
Cash received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

Net cash inflow in respect
of disposal of subsidiaries

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

()

EHEFEE
nE BERR
RENE
Rt A
ReRREEEN
AN

BEFE
Btz ER G
HEMBARME

SGLER
EdRE

ERHERBLRZ

RERNFEM -
EkRE
BHEZRERRLEEY

ABHENBAR
LBERNFE

32. FRERERERMEE ()

HEKE AR

2010
—2-8%
HK$'000
F87

1,827
166,623
3

1,431
(4,577)

2009
—ZENE
HK$'000
Thr

165,307
(15,488)
12,847

162,666

162,666

162,666
(1,431)

161,235
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33. Related party transactions 33. MEALESH

(@) Balances with related parties (@) EBEANLTHER
2010 2009
—Z-ZF T hEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FHIT
Amount due to a related JES —REEE QB FRIE
company (note (i) (BRFEE () 876 23,449
Loan from a shareholder (note (i)  M&ER &3k (M EE (i) - 59,881
Amount due to a non-controlling  FEfF—{iz FFF 1%
shareholder (note (iii)) & 5 kI8 (B3 (i) 17 133
Notes: BREE -
0] The related companies include: 0] BE AR e

—EFEEEECERS B8ROA
876,000/ 7T * MK « EHITEF|
BRIBEREE -

— an entity indirectly owned by -
a director. The balance of
approximately HK$876,000 was
unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

controlled by a director and his
family member as at 31st December
2009. The principal amount of
HK$23,070,000 were unsecured,
bearing interest at 5.31% per annum
and repayable on demand.

— an entity jointly and indirectly -

RZBEZEAF+—A=+—H  —f
EEREREREIFEEERFEZ
FEE - AF923,070,000/8 T2 AL A
K IREFRE531 %t B NIRE
SKAEE o
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33. Related party transactions (cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Balances with related parties (cont’d)

Notes: (cont’d)

(ii) As at 31st December 2009, the loan was
from Mr. Lai Guanglin, a director of the
Company. As at 31st December 2009,
the balance was unsecured, the balance
of approximately HK$49,360,000 was
interest-bearing at HK Dollar prime rate
plus 4.75% per annum and the remaining
balance of HK$5,000,000 was interest-
bearing at 1% per month and repayable
within one year.

(i)  Amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

(iv)  Interest expenses paid to related parties
for the year ended 31st December 2009
and 2010 are disclosed in Note 9.

(V) During the year, a subsidiary purchased
a motor vehicle from a related party

amounting to approximately HK$876,000.

Key management compensation

Salaries and other short  #r& M E b2 HA
term employee benefits 1E S & H

Pension costs — defined ~ BIRESHKA —E58
contribution plans KRGS

Share based payments ARG B ERE 2 3R

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

(a)

(b)

33. MEALZH ()

BEALES (&)

fisE ()

i) MZBTAE+ZA=+—1H ZZEX
REARAFEELai Guanglinfe4 - R—F
THE+-A=+—H ZEL£H5EK
- 2 h#4949,360,00078 TTIRBE TRES
FZE hN4.75% F F =5+ B K&k 5,000,000
BILETA1%T 8 RRAKRIFERE
;?g o

(i) FEN—GIIEEHIERIRFUR A EER - &
P A B R IR ESREE -

ivv BEZZZhEFR=ZZT—ZTF+=A
=+—HIEFE  HHRBEEARZFEX
MO -

v ER —KHBARK—REEAREE
—)3E - $EEH) 5 876,000 7T ©

TEEE AR
2010 2009
—g-3E| —TIAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR T
13,628 14,179
231 144
3,914 523
17,773 14,846
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34. Business combination

On 11th November 2009, the Group completed
the acquisition of the 60% equity interest in
Kiyofo at consideration of cash of RMB18 million
(equivalent to HK$20.4 million) and issue of
800,000,000 shares of the Company. Kiyofo is
engaged in manufacturing and sale of seamless
steel pipes in Mainland China.

The acquired business contributed revenue of
HK$61,162,000 and net profit of HK$397,000
to the Group from date of acquisition to 31st
December 2009. If the acquisition had occurred
on 1st January 2009, revenue and loss
contributed to the Group for the year 2009 would
have been HK$243,486,000 and HK$9,951,000
respectively.

Set forth below was a calculation of goodwill as
at 11th November 2009:

 BIBmEMEE

34. EEBSH

RZZFZANFT—AT—8B AEEURARE
18,000,000 (#8572 20,400,000 %8 7T) 2 3 & & &
17252 §]800,000,000 XX A 1E R ME - WiES
HE8260%#am > HMENTEIRMNELEER
HEREME -

HEBRE_FTTAF+_A=1+—8 ZWE
EBRAKBEERYA61,162,0005% 7T K i 7
397,000 * & RBR _FFTNEF—HA—H
BE —TENFAMERZBRAREBED BB
243,486,000/87C % 9,951,000 87T °

ATINREER _FTNF+—A+—BZFE
A

Purchase consideration (note (i)):
— Cash paid to the vendor
— Direct cost relating to the acquisition
— Fair value of shares issued

Total purchase consideration
Less: fair value of share of net identifiable
assets acquired (shown as below)

Goodwill

HK$’000
FET
BEEAE (FsE) «

—BENBRETFER 20,430
—BRAREEE 2 HEEKRA 2,270
—BETROZAAE 48,800
BERERE 71,500

B E(EEBAR R EEFE
RRRE (R XXATR) (49,234)
EES 22,266
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34. Business combination (cont’d)

Note:

)

The final purchase consideration amount was
contingent on a RMB30 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$34.1 million) profit guarantee
provided by the former equity holders and the
current non-controlling equity holder of Kiyofo.
They had guaranteed the Group that the net
profit of Kiyofo shall not be less than RMB30
million for the year ended 31st December
2010 (the “Profit Guarantee”), and would
compensate the Group for the shortfall, if any,
in proportion to their equity shareholdings. As
at 31st December 2009, based on estimation
made by management, it was considered
that the exercise of the Profit Guarantee was
remote. No adjustment in respect of the Profit
Guarantee was therefore made to the purchase
consideration and goodwill.

However, the Profit Guarantee has not been met
as Kiyofo suffered a loss for the year ended 31st
December 2010. Due to the uncertainty and
practical difficulties in recovering the amount, the
Profit Guarantee is of insignificant value.

The assets and liabilities as of the completion
date arising from the acquisition were as follows:

Net assets acquired: W Bl &R {E
Property, plant and equipment ~ #1% « BB &%
Land use rights It R
Inventories FE

Trade and other receivables B 5 R EH Ab EUGRIA
Pledged bank deposit ERRITER

Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED
Amount due to a shareholder FE — R RIE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEFRIE
Borrowings BE

Deferred tax assets RIETIIEE =
Deferred tax liabilities BRETHIABE

Net assets (Note (i) & EFE (MIFE i)

Non-controlling interests

Net assets acquired

TR IR as
BABERME

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

34.

RBaH (R

Bt -

(

)

WEREBZRREEE - S RBESHMEATRER
I B FE7E Il 14 AR SR 4R 4 2 A B2 5 30,000,000 (%
{E#934,100,00078 ) Z FIBERE - fIFEES
meygz=—T-—TE+-_A=+—HIEEZF
ENMER AR 30,000,000 ([ FEERE ) - AR
LRAEL FIEERNEEEG 2 ERE - RZZTA
FH+ZA=1+—H ' EREREMHT  RBITE
FBRBEM - BURE B FBRF M8 &R UEE
REREEERE -

AT BREMERE—T—TF+-_A=1+—
HIEFEMXERFEHE  MABRELRE
B - AR EWFIRFENEE I N ERRE - 8
MERELEEKNEE -

R BRBEMEL cEERAENT

Acquirees’ Acquirees’
carrying amount fair value
U g 22 5 HURE ]
HIRERE HARE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
53,022 106,897
10,180 30,638
68,074 68,074
49,781 49,781
17,148 17,148
1,572 1,572
(10,225) (10,225)
(104,121) (104,121)
(68,592) (68,592)
9,467 9,467
- (18,583)
26,306 82,056
(10,522) (82,822)
15,784 49,234
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34. Business combination (cont’d)

Note:

(i)

(i

Included in net assets acquired, there was a
guarantee provided by Kiyofo to an independent
third party (the “third party”) for RMB25.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$29.2 million)
banking facility obtained by the third party (the
“financial guarantee”). For the year ended 31st
December 2009, the fair value of the financial
guarantee could only be determined provisionally
pending completion of the assessment of the
third party’s credit worthiness and valuation
process and such amount would be adjusted
within 12 months of the date of acquisition
against goodwill upon final determination of the
fair value of the financial guarantee. During the
year, management has engaged an independent
valuer to assess the fair value of the financial
guarantee and considered the fair value
determined by the valuer is insignificant, and
hence no adjustment to goodwill is made.

The financial results for the year ended
31st December 2010 for the segment of
manufacturing and sale of seamless steel pipes
was materially affected by the imposition of anti-
dumping duties on imports of steel pipes by
the United States and the significant surge in
commodities prices (i.e. cost of raw materials of
the seamless steel pipes segment). In addition,
the implementation of the strategy of selling oil
pipes to energy companies was not as smooth
as expected. Therefore, the segment could not
have any profit contribution from the sale of oil
pipes to those energy companies to reduce the
above impact.

Due to the above, the Group has performed
an impairment assessment on the assets of
the seamless steel pipes business. The Group,
after taking into account all relevant information,
inter alia, the escalating anti-dumping and anti-
subsidy duties as well as the anticipated uprising
trend of the cost of raw materials (mainly steel
billets), the carrying amounts of the assets of
the seamless steel pipes business have been
reduced to their recoverable amounts, which are
determined based on value in use calculation,
details of the key assumptions are set out in Note
16. Impairment losses on goodwill, property,
plant and equipment and land use rights of
approximately HK$23,050,000, HK$98,900,000
and HK$2,471,000 were recognised in the
consolidated income statement respectively.

1 76 4R 2R BT &

34. EBSH (1)

(i

WEZFEEET  BESHRLeE—NBIYE
=HF(E=ZF)BRERTHEMREHRARE
25,500,000(Z£{E 47 29,200,000 87T ) Z BA FHE(R
([BABER]) - BE-_TETAF+-_A=+—8H
IEFE - BB EROQA A EREREER - £=
F R EEMTENIRFINEETT  FHBERN
AREZEETE  ZoBEERREAS+ =@
AANEEGEEH - FA - EIREZRLE L HERM
FEFEERZ AAE  ERIGERMFTEZR
REWESAEE B ETEELAE -

HE_ZT-ZTE+_A=+—HUEEE £EX
HEEANE DB WIS EEREZHLEOMHE
B RIBHET R mER (EERE D B2 IR
MR ) RIBBEAMZRERTE - [ B
Mt &M E T REIR A 5] 2 SRS R anFEHAAR B F) o
At - ZDBHERE FZEERD RIARERK
BN FRIAR D il f 28 o

HER DRA - ARE D RERNEXEGNEE
EITRERE - AEBKERAAHBERMR
He @3F - B8 LI ey RAIASH B N R A R B
VAR TAET R EH (E ZRMIE) KA ERHE L
Tt ERNEEBNEEREEEKEHLTK
Bl & 28 (LD REEREENF EEARMER -
Hep+ 2ERFFIINME16) - WS - 2
RS Kokt + LA Te {8 FR A M RUEL 1R 2D Bl 4
23,050,000 7T * 98,900,000% 7T & 2,471,000
BT WERERE WK AER -
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35.

36.

37.

Events after the balance sheet date

On 21st January 2011, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Magic Joy
Global Limited (the “Purchaser”), pursuant to
which the Purchaser agreed to acquire and the
Group agreed to sell all issued shares of National
Link Investment Limited at the consideration of
HK$1. The disposal was completed on 18th
February 2011. It is expected that the Group will
record an insignificant gain from the disposal and
is in the process of finalising the amount.

Ultimate holding company

The Directors of the Company consider
Singapore Zhongxin, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate
holding company. Singapore Zhongxin is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin, a
director of the Company.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the
Board on 28th March 2011.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE#&£EHERATE

35.

36.

37.

RER®RER

R-T——F—HA=+—B  A&EKMajor Joy
Global Limited ([E77])AIZE & @ #uk
BESTREBARAEEREHELEBEBRERA
AEEHTRN - KER1VET - HEFER
“F——F-AtN\BEK  AHHEFETNK
% AEBE/EF-BIERNNREMRIEFE
ALEH °

R ERLAT

3 Z Singapore Zhongxin & & &2 E A &) o
Lai Guanglin 5%t4£2E REzHA Singapore
Zhongxin * BARRARZEE °

FHBERR

ESgR_Z——F=A-+\BERUBR
%0
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38. Particulars of the principal 38. FEMBELFEH

subsidiaries
Percentage
aslt
Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital Attributable to Held by
Name Principal Activities ERTRERE the Group subsidiaries
2R TERE k% /ithas FRERE  WELERH
Incorporated and operating
in Hong Kong
EEBH VRS
Bun Kee (International) Limited Trading of construction materials, 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100 100
mainly pipes and fittings 3,000,000 non-voting
in Hong Kong deferred shares of HK$1 each
e (Bl ) BRAR REBEERENN  TERKRE 100 REREE 1 ATz EER
RE# 3,000,000 R BREME 1 ETZ
ERZRETR
Hamerwind Logistic Company Provision of warehousing and logistic 800 ordinary shares of HK$100 each 100 100
Limited services in Hong Kong
KEMRARAA REBREAHT KRR 800 EREE 100 87T 2 Lk
Established and operating
inthe PRC
ERER T RS
EESHERERNERR AR Manufacturing and sale of seamless RMB50,000,000 60 60
steel pipes in the PRC
RPELEERHEEERE AR%50,000,000
Bun Kee Buiding Material Assembling materials in the PRC HK$9,000,000 100 100
(Guangzhou) Co, Ltd. R B M B 9,000,000 7T
WaaEm (BM) BRAR
Established and operating
in Macao
LRV RS
Bun Kee Buiding Material and Trading of construction materials, MOP50,000 100 100
Equipment (Macao) Co., Ltd. mainly pipes and fittings in Macao 50,000}2F &

Wt RRE (A ERAR  NEMRERENH  TEAREREN
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Results

Revenue

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year from
continuing operations

Loss for the year from
discontinued operation

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

BA

BaraEd,/ (BR)
BA(XH)/ B

TEEER L
FREN/(BR)

RIEREBRES
ZEEBR

FREMN/(BR)

&% :
BREREA
FRERIMEE R

Note: The results of operation of investment properties
segment (which was discontinued in 2010) prior to
2009 have not been restated or reclassified.

China Pipe Group Limited FEIE%&£EHERATE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
“TERF —TTtF ZET)\E ZTITNF | ZB-BF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000 | HK$000
THEL THEL TET FHT TR
617,556 633668 701766 452018 | 516,479
71,616 84583 (36,868  (25272)| (157,866)
(12314 (17,479) (5,728) 2,221 5,638
59,302 67,104  (4259)  (23051)| (152,228)
- - - (16346)| (14,855)
59,302 67,104 (4259  (39,397) | (167,083)
59,302 67,104  (4259) (39,662 | (122,769)
- - - 265 | (44,314)
59,302 67,104  (4259)  (39,397)| (167,083)
523353 817,492 820,834 924,788 | 508,355
(183489) (369,883  (416,210)  (476,645) | (323,062)
339864 447,609 404,624 448143 | 275,293

BiEE - REMFREE

PaNvi
774l

NEARINEERIEETIHED R -

BR = F—FEMMIEEE R -FT
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